Washington Federal.
invested here.

Washington Federal, Inc.
Annual Report 2011.



WASHINGTON FEDERAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Financial Highlights 1
Letter to Shareholders 2
Management Discussion and

Analysis 6
Selected Financial Data 15
Audited Financial Statements 16

Notes to the Financial Statements 21
Management Report on Internal

Controls 55
Audit Opinions 55
Stock Performance Graphs 57

General Corporate Information 58

A SHORT HISTORY

Washington Federal, Inc.
(Company or Washington Federal) is
a unitary thrift holding company
headquartered in Seattle, Wash-
ington. Its principal subsidiary is
Washington Federal (Bank), which
operates 160 offices in eight western
states.

The Company had its origin on
April 24, 1917, as Ballard Savings and
Loan Association. In 1935, the state-
chartered Company converted to a
federal charter, became a member of
the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB)
system and obtained federal deposit
insurance. In 1958, Ballard Federal
Savings and Loan Association merged
with Washington Federal Savings and
Loan Association of Bothell, and the
latter name was retained for wider
geographical acceptance. In 1971,
Seattle Federal Savings and Loan
Association, with three offices,
merged into the Company, and at the
end of 1978 was joined by the 10 offi-
ces of First Federal Savings and Loan
Association of Mount Vernon.

On November 9, 1982, the
Company converted from a federal
mutual to a federal stock association.
In 1987 and 1988, acquisitions of
United First Federal, Provident
Federal Savings and Loan, and
Northwest Federal Savings and Loan,
all headquartered in Boise, Idaho,
added 28 Idaho offices to the Com-
pany. In 1988, the acquisition of
Freedom Federal Savings and Loan
Association in Corvallis, Oregon,
added 13 Oregon offices, followed in
1990 by the eight Oregon offices of
Family Federal Savings.

In 1991, the Company added
three branches with the acquisition of
First Federal Savings and Loan
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Association of Idaho Falls, Idaho, and
acquired the deposits of First Western
Savings Association of Las Vegas,
Nevada, in Portland and Eugene,
Oregon, where it was doing business
as Metropolitan Savings Association.
In 1993, 10 branches were added with
the acquisition of First Federal Sav-
ings Bank of Salt Lake City, Utah. In
1994, the Company expanded into
Arizona.

In 1995, the stockholders
approved a reorganization whereby
the Bank became a wholly owned
subsidiary of a newly formed holding
company, Washington Federal, Inc.
That same year, the Company pur-
chased West Coast Mutual Savings
Bank with its one branch in Central-
ia, Washington, and opened six addi-
tional branches. In 1996, the Com-
pany acquired Metropolitan Bancorp
of Seattle, adding eight offices in
Washington as well as opening four
branches in existing markets. Between
1997 and 1999, the Company con-
tinued to develop its branch network,
opening a total of seven branches and
consolidating three offices into exist-
ing locations.

In 2000, the Company expanded
into Las Vegas, opening its first
branch in Nevada along with two
branches in Arizona. In 2001, the
Company opened two additional
branches in Arizona and its first
branch in Texas, with an office in the
Park Cities area of Dallas. In 2002,
five full-service branches were opened
in existing markets. In 2003, the
Company purchased United Savings
and Loan Bank with its four branches
in Seattle, added one new branch in
Puyallup, Washington, and con-
solidated one branch in Nampa, Ida-
ho. In 2005, the Company con-
solidated two branches in Mount
Vernon, Washington, into one and
opened branches in Plano, Texas, and
West Bend, Oregon. In 2006, the
Company opened locations in Kla-
math Falls, Oregon, and Richardson,
Texas, added another location in Las
Vegas, Nevada, and opened a branch
in Medford, Oregon.

The Company acquired First
Federal Banc of the Southwest, Inc.,
the holding company for First Federal
Bank located in Roswell, New Mex-
ico, on February 13, 2007. First
Federal Bank had 13 branch locations,
11 in New Mexico and two in El Paso,
Texas. The Company acquired First
Mutual Bancshares, Inc. (“First

Mutual”), the holding company for
First Mutual Bank, on February 1,
2008. First Mutual had 12 branches
primarily located on the eastside of
Seattle. The Company also opened a
location in Redmond, Oregon, in
2009. During 2010, the Company
opened two new locations, one in Las
Vegas, Nevada, and the other in Pre-
scott Valley, Arizona.

On January 8, 2010, the Company
acquired certain assets and liabilities,
including most of the loans and
deposits, of Horizon Bank (Horizon),
headquartered in Bellingham, Wash-
ington, from the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC), as
receiver for Horizon. Horizon oper-
ated 18 full-service offices, four
commercial loan centers and four real
estate loan centers in Washington.
Through consolidation with existing
Washington Federal branches, there
was a net increase of 10 branches as a
result of the Horizon acquisition.

In July 2011, the Company
changed the name of its operating
subsidiary from “Washington Federal
Savings and Loan Association” to
“Washington Federal,” acknowledging
the increasing mix of product offer-
ings as well as customer recognition of
the Washington Federal brand. On
October 14, 2011, the Company
acquired six branch locations, four in
Albuquerque, New Mexico, and two
in Santa Fe, New Mexico, from Char-
ter Bank.

The Company obtains its funds
primarily through deposits from the
general public, repayments of loans,
borrowings and retained earnings.
These funds are used largely to make
loans to individuals and businesses,
including loans for the purchase of
new and existing homes, construction
and land loans, commercial real estate
loans, commercial and industrial loans
and loans for investments.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

September 30, 2011 2010 % Change
(In thousands, except per share data)
ASSEUS o v e et e $13,440,749 $13,486,379 (0.3%)
Cash and cash equivalents .......... ... ... i 816,002 888,622 (8.2)
INVEStMENT SECUTITIES .+« + v v v v et et ettt e e e e e e et 246,004 358,061 (31.3)
Loans receivable, net ... ..ot 7,935,877 8,423,703 (5.8)
Covered 10ans, NEt . .. ..o v 382,183 534,474 (28.5)
Mortgage-backed securities .............. . 3,056,176 2,203,139 +38.7
CUSLOMET ACCOUNTS -+« v vt et et et e e e e e e e e e e 8,665,903 8,852,540 (2.1)
FHLB advances and other borrowings .. ............. ..o ... 2,762,066 2,665,548 +3.6
Stockholders’ equity ... ..ottt e 1,906,533 1,841,147 +3.6
Net income available to common shareholders . ........................ 111,141 118,653 (6.3)
Diluted earnings pershare ........ ... ... 1.00 1.05 (4.8)
Dividends pershare ........ ... e 0.24 0.20 +20.0
Stockholders’ equity pershare . ......... ... 17.49 16.37 +6.8
Shares outstanding . .. ......ovt e 108,976 112,484 (3.1)
Return on average stockholders’ equity .. .........coiiiiiiiia .. 5.99% 6.55% NM
Return on average assets .. ..........o.uiniriini i 0.83 0.89 NM
Efficiency ratio (1) ..ottt e e e 31.30 26.26 NM

(1) Calculated as total operating costs divided by net interest income, plus other income (excluding Investment gains)

NM — not meaningful

Total Assets Stockholders’ Equity

Dollars in Millions Dollars in Millions
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TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS

Dear Shareholder,

It is a privilege for me to report that your company had another very successful year of operations, with much improved
core earnings despite challenging conditions. Net income in fiscal year 2011 amounted to $111,141,000, which represents
a 6% decline from reported net income of $118,653,000 in 2010. However, after excluding two large non-recurring items
recorded in 2010, an $86 million pretax acquisition gain and the recapture of a $39 million contingent tax liability, earn-
ings actually improved by $86 million or 345%. We view this as a significant accomplishment in light of ongoing
economic and industry upheaval.

The strong increase in core earnings resulted largely from improved asset quality. After peaking at $606 million in June
of 2009, non-performing assets (defined as loans on which payment is no longer being made plus foreclosed assets) have
declined by 39% and ended the fiscal year at $370 million, or 2.76% of total assets. We are also pleased to report consid-
erable improvement in net loan charge-offs, as they fell by nearly one-half, from $184 million last year to $98 million in
fiscal 2011. Likewise, losses on the disposition of foreclosed real estate declined by 50% from $80 million to $40 million.
Improvement in those measures provides evidence that the bottom of this credit cycle was reached well in the past.

The largest of our loan portfolios is performing much better than the balance of the industry, as evidenced by the
nearby chart comparing our mortgage delinquencies to those of the industry as a whole. It is encouraging to note that the
level of past due mortgage loans as a percentage of our

total portfolio remains steady, even though total mortgage

loans outstanding declined along with housing prices in

virtually all of our markets. The differential in quality is a

testament to those in our company who underwrite and ey

service those mortgage loans. I I
) bbbttt
o Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 Mar-10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10 Mar-11 Jun-11 Sep-11

The steep decline in housing values and the jobless recovery, however, have left many mortgage borrowers challenged to
make payments. In response, as we previously reported to you, in 2009 the Company created a Mortgage Resource Center,
staffed with some of our most experienced mortgage lenders, to provide a single area within the Company where troubled
borrowers could seek assistance. Since then, we have voluntarily modified some 1,946 mortgage loans to enable families
suffering a temporary disruption in income to stay in their homes. Happily, our willingness to do so has been rewarded, as 85%
of those modified loans are paying as agreed and many have now returned to the originally scheduled amortization.

Since the inception of the Mortgage Resource Center, 31% of those seeking a modification have been declined
because in our view the impairment was permanent. In those cases, we concluded that the only viable alternative was a
foreclosure or a deed in lieu of foreclosure. Throughout the devastating housing downturn that has led to so much hardship
for consumers and to the outright failure of many lenders, our professional workout staff has maintained its poise and has
done a terrific job of assisting troubled borrowers while protecting the interests of the Company. Anyone can behave well
when times are good. Reputations though, are made in tough times and there is little doubt that our reputation for
integrity and fairness has grown over the past two years thanks to their efforts.

Virtually all other financial measures of the Company’s performance during the year were positive. Operating expenses
remained at the very low end of the industry range. The Company’s efficiency ratio, an expression of pennies spent to
produce $1 of net revenue, was 31.3%, compared to an industry average of 61.1%. This is a world class level of cost effec-
tiveness, despite a significant increase in expenses outside our control, mostly related to heightened regulatory demands
and a twenty-fold increase in FDIC insurance premiums.
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Capital and liquidity remain remarkably strong. After cash dividends and the repurchase of 3.8 million shares during
the fiscal year, an increase in capital accounts of $65 million was reported. The Company’s ratio of tangible common
equity to tangible assets, the purest measure of capital strength, increased to 12.52% in 2011 from 11.97% in 2010 and
stands as the 2nd best such ratio among the 50 largest publicly traded financial institutions in the country. To reinforce
management’s belief that Washington Federal continues to be one of the strongest banks in America, consider that in the
impossible event that 100% of non-performing assets were charged off tomorrow, the tangible common equity ratio would
still amount to 10.9%, rank 5th and amount to 128% of the average for that same peer group.

With all of the positive news reported here, one would expect the price per share of Washington Federal common
stock to have improved, yet as you are well aware - it did not. This decline in value is particularly painful for shareholders
because it comes on the heels of the banking crisis and the housing bust, during which the company’s price per share fell
for readily apparent reasons. This past year, though, the decline in value stands in marked contrast to the performance of
the Company, which was considerably improved in comparison to the prior two years. The absence of correlation between
the share price and the Company’s performance can be partially attributed to a market driven more by macroeconomic and
geopolitical events than by the financial metrics of individual companies. A range of concerns, including slow growth in
the U.S. economy characterized by stubbornly high unemployment and further declines in housing values, have created an
environment of uncertainty and bearishness that has simply overwhelmed the Company’s improved financial results.

Other industry issues affecting the Company’s stock price include excess capacity, ultra-low interest rates and the vir-
tual monopoly that the government enjoys in housing finance. It is also clear that the Dodd-Frank Act has caused invest-
ors to discount the future profitability of the industry. The Durbin Amendment to the Dodd-Frank Act, for example,
produced an estimated $7 billion windfall in debit card revenues for retailers; unfortunately though, this gain will come
directly from the bottom line of the banking industry. Dodd-Frank also adds uncertainty and cost through the layering of
additional regulation. Washington Federal has gone from a single primary regulator to three. The Federal Reserve now has
regulatory jurisdiction over the parent company, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency supervises the regulated
subsidiary and the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau has responsibility for regulating our delivery of consumer prod-
ucts. Only experience will show the full impact of these changes, but each of our new regulators has reached out con-
structively and, based upon those conversations, we believe that we are positioned to meet their requirements.

These high level circumstances are the best explanation available for our stock trading below book value at a time
when the company is so solidly profitable, with improving trends nearly across the board. We believe that the selling is
overdone and that the current stock price does not reflect the intrinsic value of the Company.

As always, we are continuing to provide our customers with valuable banking services such as a safe place for deposits
and mortgage and business loans. These activities also provide stable jobs for our employees, benefits to our communities,
including tax payments, and profits for our shareholders.

Looking ahead, we are optimistic about future prospects within the construct of the new economic realities. For many
of the reasons cited above, gone for some time are the days when we could earn 2% on assets, yet there are still excellent
opportunities to create shareholder value. The highest and best use of excess capital is organic growth and we are in fact
attracting new business even with our conservative tolerance for risk. Industry consolidation will continue and perhaps
accelerate, and the Company also has the capital, the talent and the infrastructure to acquire. If neither of these oppor-
tunities comes to pass, we will continue to return excess capital to you in the form of cash dividends or stock repurchases.
In June, the board of directors authorized the repurchase of an additional ten million shares. At this writing 2,306,186
shares have been repurchased under that authorization, so significant capacity remains. One way or another, management
and the Board are committed to rewarding shareholder patience with an improved stock price. Toward that end, the Board
has begun taking a substantial portion of its compensation in stock, and long-term management incentives are now largely
driven by total shareholder return.
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TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk, defined as the
impact on earnings of a change in
interest rates, will also be an area of
management focus this year. With
interest rates at all time lows, caution
must be exercised in originating long
term assets. To protect against higher
interest rates in the future, marketing
and new business development will
be targeted to shorter maturity fixed
rate assets, floating rate assets and low
cost transaction accounts. Liquidity
levels will likely remain higher than
normal along with capital, so that if
rates do increase management will
have the ability to leverage and
acquire assets at the new higher rates
in order to offset the decline in
profitability of the existing balance
sheet. This conservative approach to (Back row - from left to right) Thomas E. Kasanders, Executive Vice President, Linda S. Brower,
financial management means that we  Executive Vice President, Mark A. Schoonover, Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer,
are effectively paying an insurance Angela D. Veksler, Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer (Front row - from left to right)
Jack B. Jacobson, Executive Vice President, Roy M. Whitehead, Chairman, President and Chief

Executive Officer, Edwin C. Hedlund, Executive Vice President and Secretary, Brent ]. Beardall,
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.

premium through reduced short-term
earnings in order to assure our per-
formance in the long term. Investors
are encouraged to review the interest
rate risk disclosures included in this
report to gain a more complete
understanding of this key risk, which
has always been well-managed by the
Company.

In January, Jim Doud and Denny Halvorson will step down from the board after reaching the retirement age prescribed
by informal policy. Mr. Halvorson joined the board after the Company’s acquisition of Metropolitan Savings in 1996 and
has served as Chairman of the Compensation Committee and as the board’s Lead Independent Director since 2006.

Mr. Doud was elected to the board in 2008 after serving as a director of First Mutual, Inc. prior to its acquisition by Wash-
ington Federal, served on the Audit & Risk Policy Committee and, as a member of the Nominating & Governance
Committee, was instrumental in the recruiting of replacement directors. I wish to thank both of them for their thoughtful
leadership and the seriousness with which they approached their director responsibilities. Both have been very strong
contributors to the Company’s success and the depth of their experience will certainly be missed. In light of their retire-
ments, | also wish to thank John Clearman for his agreement to an additional one-year term, during which he will serve as
the Lead Independent Director.

In anticipation of the above retirements, the Company was fortunate to recruit two new directors with experience
managing large, successful companies. Mark Tabbutt, Chairman of Saltchuk Resources, joined the board in April 2011,
and Liane Pelletier, former Chairman, President & CEO of Alaska Communications Corp, was appointed to the board in
August. Mark will serve as Chairman of the Regulatory Compliance Committee next year, while Liane will join the
Audit & Risk Policy Committee. In light of their relative youth, we hope that they will serve for many years and extend
our long history of strong, stable management and board oversight. I thank both of them for their willingness to serve at a
time when so much is expected of public company directors.
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After the end of our fiscal year, the Company completed its acquisition of six branches formerly owned by Charter
Bank in New Mexico. The transaction adds $250 million in deposits, along with two branches in Santa Fe and four new
locations in Albuquerque. The acquisition brings total deposits in New Mexico to over $700 million. I’d like to welcome
the former Charter Bank employees, whom we have found to be most professional, and their clients to Washington

Federal.

In closing, I’d like to express appreciation for the work of the Executive Management Committee, our loyal employees
and our dedicated Board of Directors. All will be working hard to grow the business next year and, as always, you can help
by sending your friends, relatives and neighbors to Washington Federal for all their banking needs.

I hope to see you at the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held at 2:00 PM on January 18th at the Westin
Hotel in downtown Seattle.

Sincerely,

Roy M. Whitehead
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K and the documents into which it may be incorporated by reference may con-
tain, and from time to time our management may make, certain statements that constitute forward-looking
statements. Words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates” and other similar expressions or future
or conditional verbs such as “will,” “should,” “would” and “could” are intended to identify such forward-looking
statements. These statements are not historical facts, but instead represent the current expectations, plans or
forecasts of the Company and are based on the beliefs and assumptions of the management of the Company and
the information available to management at the time that these disclosures were prepared. The Company intends
for all such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and the provisions of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These statements are not
guarantees of future results or performance and involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are diffi-
cult to predict and often are beyond the Company’s control. Actual outcomes and results may differ materially
from those expressed in, or implied by, the Company’s forward-looking statements.

” «

You should not place undue reliance on any forward-looking statement and should consider the following
uncertainties and risks, as well as the risks and uncertainties discussed elsewhere in this report, including under
Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” and in any of the Company’s other subsequent Securities and Exchange Commission
filings:

® negative economic conditions, including sharp declines in the real estate market, home sale volumes and
financial stress on borrowers as a result of the uncertain economic environment, that adversely affect our
borrowers and their customers, and may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations;

e the severe effects of the continued economic downturn, including high unemployment rates and severe
declines in housing prices and property values, in our primary market areas;

e fluctuations in interest rate risk and changes in market interest rates, which may negatively affect the
Company’s results of operations and financial conditions;

e the Company’s ability to make accurate assumptions and judgments about the collectability of its loan
portfolio, including the creditworthiness of its borrowers and the value of the assets securing these loans;

e [legislative and regulatory limitations, including those arising under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform
Act and potential limitations in the manner in which we conduct our business and undertake new
investments and activities;

e the Bank’s ability to comply with the terms of its memorandum of understanding with the OCC;

e changes in other economic, competitive, governmental, regulatory, and technological factors affecting
the Company’s markets, operations, pricing, products, services and fees; and

e the timing and occurrence or non-occurrence of events that may be subject to circumstances beyond the
Company’s control.

All forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which such statements are made, and Washington
Federal undertakes no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements to reflect changed
assumptions, the occurrence of unanticipated events, changes to future operating results over time, or the impact
of circumstances that arise after the date the forward-looking statement was made.

GENERAL Washington Federal, Inc. (Company or Washington Federal) is a unitary thrift holding company. The Company’s
primary operating subsidiary is Washington Federal (Bank), a federally chartered savings association.
The Company’s fiscal year end is September 30th. All references to 2011, 2010 and 2009 represent balances as of
September 30, 2011, September 30, 2010 and September 30, 2009, or activity for the fiscal years then ended.

References to net income in this document refer to net income available to common shareholders.

CRITICAL Preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

ACCOUNTING States of America requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of certain assets,

POLICIES liabilities, revenues and expenses in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, estimated
amounts may fluctuate from one reporting period to another due to changes in assumptions underlying estimated
values.
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The Company has determined that the only accounting policy deemed critical to an understanding of the con-
solidated financial statements of Washington Federal relates to the methodology for determining the valuation of
the allowance for loan losses, as described below.

The Company maintains an allowance for loan losses to absorb losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The allow-
ance is based on ongoing, quarterly assessments of the probable and estimable losses inherent in the loan portfo-
lio. The Company’s methodology for assessing the appropriateness of the allowance consists of several key ele-
ments, which include the general allowance and specific allowances.

The general loan loss allowance is established by applying a loss percentage factor to each of the different loan
types. The allowance is provided based on Management’s continuing evaluation of the pertinent factors under-
lying the quality of the loan portfolio, including changes in the size and composition of the loan portfolio, actual
loan loss experience, current economic conditions, collateral values, geographic concentrations, seasoning of the
loan portfolio, specific industry conditions and the duration of the current business cycle. The recovery of the
carrying value of loans is susceptible to future market conditions beyond the Company’s control, which may
result in losses or recoveries differing from those provided.

Specific allowances are established for loans which are individually evaluated, in cases where management has
identified significant conditions or circumstances related to a loan that Management believes indicate the proba-
bility that a loss has been incurred.

INTEREST The primary source of income for the Company is net interest income, which is the difference between the inter-

RATE RISK est income generated by our interest-earning assets and the interest expense generated by our interest-bearing
liabilities. The level of net interest income is a function of the average balances of our interest-earnings assets and
liabilities and the spread between the yield on such assets and the cost of such liabilities. These factors are influ-
enced by both the pricing and mix of our interest-earning assets and our interest-bearing liabilities. If the interest
rates on our interest-bearing liabilities increase at a faster pace than the interest rates on our interest-earning
assets, the result could be a reduction in net interest income and with it, a reduction in our earnings.

The Company accepts a higher level of interest rate volatility as a result of its significant holdings of fixed-rate
single-family home loans that are longer-term than the short-term characteristics of its primary liabilities of cus-
tomer accounts. As a result, assets do not respond as quickly to changes in interest rates as liabilities. Due to this
strategy, net interest income typically would decline when interest rates rise and would expand when interest
rates fall as compared to a portfolio of matched maturities of assets and liabilities, if the balance sheet did not
change in size or composition.

The Company manages its interest rate risk in part by originating more fixed-rate loans when yields are higher
and adding loans and investments with shorter term characteristics, such as construction and commercial loans,
when loan rates are lower. This balance sheet strategy, in conjunction with a strong capital position and low
operating costs has allowed the Company to manage interest rate risk, within guidelines established by the Board
of Directors, through all interest rate cycles. Although a significant increase in market interest rates could
adversely affect the net interest income of the Company, the Company’s interest rate risk approach has never
resulted in the recording of a monthly operating loss.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

The Company’s objective in managing its interest rate risk is to grow the amount of net interest income, through
the rate cycles acknowledging that there will be some periods of time when that will not be feasible. The chart
below shows the volatility of our period end net interest spread (dotted line which is measured against the right
axis) compared to the relatively consistent growth in net interest income (solid line which is measured against

the left axis). This consistency is accomplished by managing the size and composition of the balance sheet
through different rate cycles.
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The following table shows the estimated repricing periods for earning assets and paying liabilities.
Repricing Period
Within One  After 1 year -
Year before 6 Years Thereafter Total
(In thousands)
As of September 30, 2011
Earning Assets (1) ...t $ 1,742,054 $ 854,212 $10,203,095 $ 12,799,361
Paying Liabilities ...................... (3,950,391) (3,841,189) (3,655,531) (11,447,111)
Excess (Liabilities) Assets ............... $(2,208,337)  $(2,986,977) $ 6,547,564
Excess as % of Total Assets .............. (16.50)%
Policy limit for one year excess ........... (40.00)%

(1) Asset repricing period includes estimated prepayments based on historical activity

At September 30, 2011, the Company had approximately 2.2 billion more liabilities than assets subject to repric-
ing in the next year than assets, which amounted to a negative maturity gap of 16.50% of total assets, approx-
imately the same as the prior year. Having this excess of liabilities, relative to assets, that will be repricing within
the next year, the Company is subject to decreasing net interest income should interest rates rise. However, if the
size and/or mix of the balance sheet changes, rising rates may not cause a decrease in net interest income.

The interest rate spread increased to 3.13% at September 30, 2011 from 3.09% at September 30, 2010. Net inter-
est spread represents the difference between the contractual rates of earning assets and the contractual rates of
paying liabilities as of a specific date. The spread increased due to lower deposit costs, partially offset by lower
asset yields. In addition, loan yields are lower as a result of refinancing of fixed-rate mortgages into historically
low long-term interest rates. Rates on customer accounts decreased by 37 basis points over the prior year while
rates on earning assets decreased by 24 basis points (see Period End Spread table below).

As of September 30, 2011, total assets decreased by $45,630,000, or 0.34%, from $13,486,379,000 at

September 30, 2010. For the year ended September 30, 2011, compared to September 30, 2010, loans (both
non-covered and covered) decreased $640,117,000, or 7.15%, while investment securities increased

$740,980,000, or 28.93%. Cash and cash equivalents of $816,002,000 and stockholders’ equity of $1,906,533,000
provides management with flexibility in managing interest rate risk going forward.
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ASSET The Company maintains an allowance to absorb losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The amount of the allow-
QUALITY & ance is based on ongoing, quarterly assessments of the probable and estimable losses inherent in the loan portfo-
ALLOWANCE FOR lio. The Company’s methodology for assessing the appropriateness of the allowance consists of several key ele-
LOAN LOSSES ments, which include the general allowance and specific allowances.

The general portion of the loan loss allowance is established by applying a loss percentage factor to the different
loan types. Management believes loan types are the most relevant factor in the allowance calculation for group of
homogeneous loans as the risk characteristics within these groups are similar. The loss percentage factor is made
up of two parts — the historical loss factor (“HLF”) and the qualitative loss factor (“QLF”). The HLF takes into
account historical charge-offs, while the QLF is determined by loan type and allows management to augment
reserve levels to reflect the current environment and portfolio performance trends including recent charge-off
trends. Allowances are provided based on management’s continuing evaluation of the pertinent factors under-
lying the quality of the loan portfolio, including changes in the size and composition of the loan portfolio, actual
loan loss experience, current economic conditions, collateral values, geographic concentrations, seasoning of the
loan portfolio, specific industry conditions, and the duration of the current business cycle. The recovery of the
carrying value of loans is susceptible to future market conditions beyond the Company’s control, which may
result in losses or recoveries differing from those provided.

Specific allowances are established for loans which are individually evaluated; in cases where management has
identified significant conditions or circumstances related to a loan that Management believes indicate the proba-
bility that a loss has been incurred.

Loans for commercial purposes, including multi-family loans, builder construction loans and commercial loans are
reviewed on an individual basis to assess the ability of the borrowers to continue to service all of their principal
and interest obligations. If a loan shows signs of weakness, it is downgraded and, if warranted, placed on
non-accrual status. On collateral dependent commercial loans, updated valuations are generally obtained from
external sources when a loan exhibits weakness or is modified. The Company also has an asset quality review
function that reports the results of its internal reviews to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.

Restructured single-family residential loans are reserved for under the Company’s general reserve methodology. If
any individual loan is significant in balance, the Company may establish a specific reserve as warranted.

Most restructured loans are accruing and performing loans where the borrower has proactively approached the
Company about modifications due to temporary financial difficulties. Each request is individually evaluated for
merit and likelihood of success. As of September 30, 2011 single-family residential loans comprised 82% of
restructured loans. The concession for these loans is typically a payment reduction through a rate reduction of
from O to O bps for a specific term, usually six to twelve months. Interest-only payments may also be approved
during the modification period. The subsequent default rate on restructured single- family mortgage loans has
been approximately 14% since inception of the program in November 2008.

Concessions for construction (4.1%), land A&D (4.8%) and multi-family loans (5.0%) are typically an extension
of maturity combined with a rate reduction of normally O bps. Since December 2008 the subsequent default rate
on restructured commercial loans has been less than 10%.

For commercial loans, six consecutive payments on newly restructured loan terms are required prior to returning
the loan to accrual status. In some instances after the required six consecutive payments are made a management
assessment will conclude that collection of the entire principal balance is still in doubt. In those instances, the
loan will remain on non-accrual. Homogeneous loans may or may not be on accrual status at the time of
restructuring, but all are placed on accrual status upon the restructuring of the loan. Homogeneous loans are
restructured only if the borrower can demonstrate the ability to meet the restructured payment terms; otherwise,
collection is pursued and the loan remains on non-accrual status until liquidated. If the homogeneous
restructured loan does not perform it is placed in non-accrual status when it is 90 days delinquent.

A loan that defaults and is subsequently modified would impact the Company’s delinquency trend, which is part
of the QLF component of the general reserve calculation. Any modified loan that re-defaults and is charged-off
would impact the HLF component of our general reserve calculation.

Non-performing assets were $370,294,000, or 2.76%, of total assets, at September 30, 2011, compared to
$434,530,000, or 3.22%, of total assets, at September 30, 2010. This continued elevated level of non-performing
assets is a result of the significant decline in housing values in the western United States and the national
recession over the last three years. This level of NPAs remains significantly higher than the 0.88% average over
the Company’s 28+ year history as a public company. Total delinquencies over 30 days were $279,222,000, or
3.43%, of net loans at September 30, 2011, compared to $304,665,000 or 3.53%, of net loans at September 30,
2010.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

The following table details non-performing asset by type, comparing 2011 and 2010 .
September 30,
Non-Performing Assets 2011 2010 $ Change % Change
(In thousands)

Non-accrual loans:

Single-family residential ................... ... .... $126,624 $123,624 $ 3,000 2.4%
Construction — speculative ...................o. ... 15,383 39,915 (24,532) (61.5)
ConsStruction — CUSTOM. &+« v vt vt v ve oo e e e e een s 635 — 635 NM
Land — acquisition & development (A&D) ............ 37,339 64,883 (27,544) (42.5)
Land — consumer lotloans ......................... 8,843 — 8,843 NM
Multi-Family ........ ... 7,664 4,931 2,733 554
Commercial real estate ........... ..., 11,380 10,831 549 5.1
Commercial & industrial .............. ... ... ...... 1,679 371 1,308 352.6
HELOC ... 481 — 481 NM
CONSUMET .+ o v oottt e e e e e 437 977 (540) (55.3)
Total non-accrual loans ......................... 210,465 245,532 (35,067) (14.3)
Total REOS&REHI ... ... 159,829 188,998 (29,169) (15.4)
Total non-performing assets . ............ouoveeeeennn... $370,294  $434,530  $(64,236) (14.8)%

NM - not meaningful

In response to the improving overall credit quality of our loan portfolio, the total allowance for loan loss
decreased by $5,934,000, or 3.6%, over 2010. $115,248,000 of the allowance is calculated under the formulas
contained in our general allowance methodology and the remaining $41,912,000 is made up of specific reserves
on loans that were deemed to be impaired at September 30, 2011. The general reserve increased by $17,156,000,
or 17.5%, to $115,248,000 while the specific reserve decreased by $23,090,000, or 35.5%. The primary reasons for
the shift in total allowance allocation from specific reserves to general reserves is due to the Company having
already addressed many of the problem loans focused in the speculative construction and land A&D portfolios,
combined with above normal delinquencies and elevated charge-offs in the single-family residential portfolio.

LIQUIDITY AND  The principal sources of funds for the Company’s activities are retained earnings, loan repayments (including
CAPITAL prepayments), net deposit inflows, repayments and sales of investments and borrowings. Washington Federal’s
RESOURCES principal sources of revenue are interest on loans and interest and dividends on investments.

The Company’s net worth at September 30, 2011, was $1,906,533,000 or 14.2%, of total assets. This is an
increase of $65,386,000 from September 30, 2010, when net worth was $1,841,147,000, or 13.7%, of total assets.
The Company’s net worth was impacted in the year by net income of $111,141,000, the payment of $26,796,000
in cash dividends, treasury stock purchases that totaled $59,680,000, as well as an increase in other compre-
hensive income of $36,107,000. The Company paid out 24.0% of its 2011 earnings in cash dividends to common
shareholders, compared with 19.0% last year. Over the long term, the Company would prefer its dividend payout
ratio to be less than 50.0%. For the year ended September 30, 2011, $86.4 million, or 77.8%, of net income was
returned to shareholders in the form of cash dividends or share repurchases.

Management believes this strong net worth position will help the Company manage its interest rate risk and
provide the capital support needed for controlled growth in a regulated environment.

The Company has a credit line with the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) of Seattle equal to 50.0% of total
assets, providing a substantial source of liquidity if needed. FHLB advances are collateralized as provided for in
the Advances, Pledge and Security Agreement by all FHLB stock owned by the Company, deposits with the
FHLB and certain mortgages or deeds of trust securing such properties as provided in the agreements with the
FHLB.

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to $816,002,000 at September 30, 2011, a 8.2% decrease
from the cash and cash equivalents balance of $888,622,000 one year ago. The Company continues to maintain
higher than normal amounts of liquidity due to concern about potentially rising interest rates in the future. Addi-
tionally, see “Interest Rate Risk” above and the “Statement of Cash Flows” included in the financial statements.

CHANGES IN Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities. Available for sale securities increased $774,051,000, or

FINANCIAL 31.2% during the year ended September 30, 2011. This increase included the purchase of $1,585,945,000 of

CONDITION available-for-sale investment securities. During the same period, $131,361,000 of available-for-sale securities were
sold at a gain of $8,147,000. There were no purchases or sales of held-to-maturity securities in the same period.
As of September 30, 2011 the Company had net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities of $85,789,000,
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net of tax, which were recorded as part of stockholders’ equity. The Company increased its available-for-sale
investment portfolio to partially replace some of the lost interest income on maturing and prepaying loans and
mortgage-backed securities.

Loans receivable. Loans receivable decreased $487,826,000, or 5.8%, to $7,935,877,000 at September 30, 2011,
from $8,423,703,000 one year earlier. This decrease resulted primarily from loan repayments (including prepay-
ments) of $1,704,826,000, which exceeded originations of $1,310,444,000 by $394,382,000. This decrease is
consistent with management’s strategy to reduce the Company’s exposure to land and construction loans and not
to aggressively compete for 30 year fixed-rate loans at rates below 4.5%, due to the duration risk associated with
such low mortgage rates, which contributed to the net run off of the loan portfolio. Additionally, during the year,
$112,693,000 of loans were transferred to REO. If the current low rates on 30 year fixed-rate mortgages persist,
management will consider continuing to shrink the Company’s loan portfolio. The following table shows the
change in the geographic distribution by state of the gross loan portfolio from 2010 to 2011.

2011 2010  Change

Washington . . . ..ot 46.6% 43.8%  2.8%
OFEGON. + + vttt e e e e e e e e e e 17.4 17.6 (0.2)
Other .« o 5.2 7.2 (2.0)
Idaho ..ot 6.6 7.0 (0.4)
ATIZONA o ot 9.1 8.8 0.3
Utah oo 7.6 7.6 —
New MeXIiCO oot vttt 3.8 3.9 (0.1)
T OXaS .« vttt 1.9 2.2 (0.3)
Nevada ... 1.8 1.9 (0.1)

100.0% 100.0%

Covered loans. As of September 30, 2011, covered loans had decreased 28.5%, or $152,291,000, to
$382,183,000, compared to September 30, 2010, due to continued paydowns and transfers of the properties into
covered real estate owned.

Real estate held for sale. Real estate held for sale decreased by $29.2 million or 15.4% to $159,829,000 from
$188,998,000 as of September 30, 2010, as the Company has continued to liquidate foreclosed properties. During
the year the Company sold 570 properties for net proceeds of $110.4 million and a net loss on sale of $0.3 mil-
lion. The total net loss on sale of real estate, measured against the original loan balance of $190.8 million, was
$80.4 million or 42.1% for properties sold in fiscal 2011. As of September 30, 2011, real estate held for sale con-
sisted of 566 properties totaling $159.8 million. Land represents $95.2 million or 60.1% of total real estate held
for sale. Net loss on real estate acquired through foreclosure, which includes gains and losses on sale, ongoing
maintenance expense and periodic write-downs from lower valuations, decreased by 50.2% from the prior year to
$40.1 million. This decrease is due to land prices stabilizing in 2011, compared to the significant depreciation of
land values in 2010.

Intangible assets. The Company’s intangible assets are made up of $251,653,000 of goodwill, servicing rights
intangible of $1,246,000, as well as the unamortized balances of the core deposit intangible of $3,372,000 at
September 30, 2011.

Customer deposits. Customer deposits at September 30, 2011, totaled $8,665,903,000 compared with
$8,852,540,000 at September 30, 2010, a 2.1% decrease. However, the Company was able to grow transaction
accounts by $107,426,000 or 4.2%, while time deposits decreased by $294,063,000 or 4.7%. The weighted aver-
age rate paid on customer deposits during the year was 1.32%, a decrease of 37 basis points from the previous year,
as a result of the low interest rate environment.

FHLB advances and other borrowings. Total borrowings increased $96,518,000 or 3.62%, to $2,762,066,000 at
September 30, 2011. See “Interest Rate Risk” above.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Contractual obligations. The following table presents, as of September 30, 2011, the Company’s significant fixed
and determinable contractual obligations, within the categories described below, by payment date or contractual

maturity.
Less than 1to5 Over 5
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years
(In thousands)
Debt obligations (1) .. ... $ 2,762,066 $ — $ 1,712,066 $ 1,050,000
Operating lease obligations ...................... 9,551 2,433 5,701 1,417

$2,771,617  $2,433  $1,717,767 $1,051,417
(1) Represents final maturities of debt obligations.

These contractual obligations, except for the operating leases, are included in the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Condition. The payment amounts represent those amounts contractually due.

RESULTS OF GENERAL

OPERATIONS See Note P, “Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited),” which highlights the quarter-by-quarter results for
the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

COMPARISON OF 2011 RESULTS WITH 2010

In 2011 net income decreased $7,512,000, or 6.3%, to $111,141,000 for the year ended September 30, 2011 as
compared to $118,653,000 for the year ended September 30, 2010. The net income for the year ended
September 30, 2010 included a $54,789,000 after tax gain on the acquisition of Horizon and a $38,865,000 tax
benefit related to the settlement of a contingent tax liability. Excluding these two non-recurring items from the
prior year, net income increased by $86.1 million, or 345%. The net income for the twelve months ended
September 30, 2011 benefited from overall lower credit costs, which included the provision for loan losses and
real estate owned expenses. The provision for loan losses amounted to $93,104,000 for the year ended

September 30, 2011, as compared to $179,909,000 for the year ago period. In additions, losses recognized on real
estate acquired through foreclosure was $40,050,000 for the year ended September 30, 2011, as compared to
$80,475,000 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010.

The table below sets forth certain information regarding changes in interest income and interest expense of the
Company for the 2011. For each category of interest-earning asset and interest-bearing liability, information is
provided on changes attributable to: (1) changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied by old rate) and

(2) changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by old average volume). The change in interest income and inter-
est expense attributable to changes in both volume and rate has been allocated proportionately to the change due
to volume and the change due to rate.

Year Ended
September 30, 2011
Volume Rate Total
Interest income:
Loans and covered @ssets . . ... ..vui it $(36,101) $ (2,738) $(38,839)
Mortgaged-backed securities ... .......... i 25,601 (9,169) 16,432
Investments (1) . ..ot e e (142) 3,624 3,482
All Interest-earning @sSETS « . . ... v v ettt ettt (10,642) (8,283)  (18,925)
Interest expense:
CUSEOMET ACCOUNLES .« .+ o v e v et et et ettt e e e e e e e e e 2,684 (33,209)  (30,525)
FHLB advances and other borrowings .. .............cooiiiiao .. (8,315) (2,565)  (10,880)
All interest-bearing liabilities ... ....... ... .. ... . i (5,631)  (35,774)  (41,405)
Change in net interest iNCOME . . ...\t e e oo eeans $ (5,011) $ 27,491 $ 22,480

The Company recorded a $93,104,000 provision for loan losses in 2011 compared to $179,909,000 in 2010.
Non-performing assets (NPA’s) decreased by $64,236,000 over 2010. The Company had net charge-offs of
$98,284,000 for the twelve months ended September 30, 2011 compared with $183,651,000 of net charge-offs for
the same period one year ago. The decrease in the provision for loan losses is in response to four primary factors:
first, the amount of NPA’s improved year-over-year; second, non-accrual loans as a percentage of total loans
decreased from 2.80% at September 30, 2010, to 2.54% at September 30, 2011; third, the percentage of loans 30
days or more delinquent decreased from 3.53% at September 30, 2010, to 3.43% at September 30, 2011; and
finally, the Company’s exposure in the land A&D and speculative construction portfolios, the source of the
majority of losses during this period of the cycle, has decreased from a combined 5.40% of the gross loan portfolio
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at September 30, 2010, to 4.10% at September 30, 2011. Management expects the provision to remain elevated
until housing values stabilize. Management believes the allowance for loan losses, totaling $157,160,000, is suffi-
cient to absorb estimated losses inherent in the portfolio.

Total other income decreased $94,497,000, or 78.5%, in 2011 from 2010. The year ended September 30, 2010,
included an $85,608,000 non-recurring gain on the acquisition of Horizon (see Note A).

Compensation expense increased $2,155,000, or 3.1%, in 2011 primarily due to operating for a full year with the
Horizon branches. The number of personnel, including part-time employees considered on a full-time equivalent
basis, decreased to 1,221 at September 30, 2011, compared to one year ago.

Occupancy expense increased slightly to $14,480,000 for the twelve months ended September 30, 2011 from
$13,933,000 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010. The branch network consisted of 160 offices at both
September 30, 2011 and 2010.

FDIC insurance expense increased to $20,582,000 for 2011 from $18,626,000 in 2010 as a result of the significant
increase in the number of bank failures during the year which has depleted the FDIC fund. The FDIC has under-
taken to replenish the FDIC fund through changes to the assessment calculation, special assessments and higher
insurance premiums for all insured depository institutions.

Other expenses increased slightly to $29,496,000 for the twelve months ended September 30, 2011 from
$28,830,000 for the comparable period one year ago. Operating expense for 2011 and 2010 equaled 1.01% and
0.98% of average assets, respectively. Despite the increase in operating expenses, the Company continues to
operate as one of the most efficient financial institutions in the country.

The loss on real estate acquired through foreclosure decreased 50.2% to $40,050,000 in 2011 from $80,475,000 in
2010, due primarily to the decline in balances of real estate acquired through foreclosure, as the Company con-
tinues to liquidate foreclosed properties. The net loss on real estate acquired through foreclosure, includes gains
and losses on sale, ongoing maintenance expense and periodic write-downs from lower property valuations.

Income tax expense increased to $62,518,000 in 2011 from $4,372,000 for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2010. The fiscal 2010 amount included a $38,865,000 tax benefit related to the settlement of a contingent tax
liability (see Note A). The effective tax rate was 36.00% for 2011 versus 3.55% for 2010. The Company expects
an effective tax rate of 36.00% going forward.

COMPARISON OF 2010 RESULTS WITH 2009

In 2010 net income increased $77,969,000, or 191.6%, from 2009, primarily as a result of the $54,789,000 after
tax gain on the acquisition of Horizon and a $38,865,000 tax benefit related to the settlement of a contingent tax
liability. In addition, during the twelve months ended September 30, 2010, the Company recognized a gain on
sale of available-for-sale securities of $22,409,000. Losses recognized on real estate acquired through foreclosure
was $80,475,000 for the twelve months ended September 30, 2010 as compared to $16,354,000 for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2009.

Interest income on loans, covered loans and mortgage-backed securities decreased $35,886,000, or 5.2%, in 2010
due to a 1.7% decrease in the average outstanding balance, as well as a 21 basis point decrease in the weighted

average yield during the year from 6.04% in 2009 to 5.83% in 2010.

Interest and dividend income on investment securities and cash equivalents increased $7,672,000, or 252.0%, in
2010 from 2009. This increase was primarily due to an increase in the average outstanding balance of investment
securities, cash equivalents and FHLB stock, which increased 251.0% to $1,252,991,000.

Interest expense on customer accounts decreased 23.5% to $146,360,000 for 2010 from $191,435,000 for 2009.
The decrease primarily related to a 87 basis point decrease in the average cost of customer accounts to 1.69%
during the year compared to 2.56% one year ago, offset by a 15.4% increase in the average balance of customer
accounts over the prior year. Interest expense on FHLB advances and other borrowings decreased to
$122,741,000 in 2010 from $127,192,000 in 2009 due to a decrease in the average balance of borrowings to
$2,880,322,000 during 2010 from $3,235,231,000 during 2009. Partially offsetting the decrease in the average
balance of borrowings was the increase in the average cost of borrowings for the year ended September 30, 2010
t0 4.26% from 3.93% for the same period one year ago.

The Company recorded a $179,909,000 provision for loan losses in 2010 compared to $193,000,000 in 2009.
Non-performing assets decreased by $122,590,000 over 2009. The Company had net charge-offs of $183,651,000
for the twelve months ended September 30, 2010 compared with $111,222,000 of net charge-offs for the same
period one year ago. The decrease in the provision for loan losses is in response to four primary factors: first, the
improvement in the amount of NPA’s year-over-year; second, non-accrual loans as a percentage of total loans
decreased from 4.23% at September 30, 2009, to 2.91% at September 30, 2010; third, the percentage of loans 30
days or more delinquent decreased from 4.86% at September 30, 2009, to 3.53% at September 30, 2010; and
finally, the Company’s exposure in the land A&D and speculative construction portfolios, where the majority of
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

losses have come from during this period of the cycle, has decreased from a combined 8.4% of the gross loan port-
folio at September 30, 2009, to 5.4% at September 30, 2010. Management expects the provision to remain at
elevated levels until NPA’s and charge-offs improve measurably. Management believes the allowance for loan
losses, totaling $163,094,000, is sufficient to absorb estimated losses inherent in the portfolio.

Total other income increased $101,421,000, or 533.5%, in 2010 from 2009. The year ended September 30, 2010,
included an $85,608,000 gain on the acquisition of Horizon (see Note A).

Compensation expense increased $12,782,000, or 22.4%, in 2010 primarily due to the addition of Horizon
employees and incentive compensation paid related to the increase in net income. Personnel, including part-time
employees considered on a full-time equivalent basis, increased to 1,223 at September 30, 2010 compared to
1,105 one year ago.

Occupancy expense increased $884,000, or 6.77%, during the year primarily due to the additional branches
acquired in the Horizon transaction. The branch network increased to 160 offices at September 30, 2010 versus
150 offices one year ago.

FDIC insurance expense increased to $18,626,000 for 2010 from $10,688,000 in 2009 as a result of the significant
increase in bank failures during the year which has depleted the FDIC fund. The FDIC has undertaken to replen-
ish the FDIC fund through special assessments and higher insurance premiums for all insured depository
institutions. Other expenses increased $3,725,000 during the year primarily related to the operating costs added
from the Horizon acquisition and increased information technology spending. Operating expense for 2010 and
2009 equaled 0.98% and .87% of average assets, respectively.

The loss on real estate acquired through foreclosure increased from $16,354,000 in 2009 to $80,475,000 in 2010
due to the growth in balances of real estate acquired through foreclosure, combined with the resulting net loss on
sale and any additional valuation adjustments of properties stemming from continued declines in real estate values.
Income tax expense decreased $23,198,000 or 84.1%, in 2010 as a result of a $38,865,000 tax benefit related to

the settlement of a contingent tax liability (see Note A). The effective tax rate was 3.55% for 2010 versus
36.40% for 2009.

PERIOD END SPREAD - AS OF THE DATE SHOWN

Dec  Mar  Jun Sep Dec Mar  Jun Sep
2009 2010 2010 2010 2010 2011 2011 2011

Interest rate on loans and mortgage-backed

SECUTILIES © v vttt e 6.00% 5.97% 5.89% 5.75% 5.66% 5.58% 5.49% 5.43%
Interest rate on investment securities ........ 0.56 1.21 1.21 1.26 130 1.11 1.26  0.98
Combined . ....... ... 549 537 521 521 512 505 507 497
Interest rate on customer accounts . ......... 1.75 1.70  1.63 1.51 140 132 124 1.14
Interest rate on borrowings ................ 425 419 419 414 414 414 414 4.04
Combined . ......... . 241 230 225 212 203 198 192 1.84
Interest rate spread .. ... 3.08% 3.07% 2.96% 3.09% 3.09% 3.07% 3.15% 3.13%

The interest rate spread increased during 2011 from 3.09% at September 30, 2010 to 3.13% at September 30,
2011. See “Interest Rate Risk” section above.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Year ended September 30, 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands, except per share data)

Interest iNCOME + . vvvveve e $ 644,635 $ 663560 $ 691,774 $ 701,428 $ 618,682
Interest eXpense . .............ooouiinn.. 227,696 269,101 318,627 397,641 358,501
Net interest income .. .................. 416,939 394,459 373,147 303,787 260,181
Provision for loan losses . .. .............. 93,104 179,909 193,000 60,516 1,550
Otherincome ........ ... .. .. (14,117) 39,955 2,655 (60,212) 15,569
Other expense ..........coooveeerinnn.. 136,059 131,480 107,060 87,220 64,888

Income before income taxes ........... 173,659 123,025 75,742 95,839 209,312
INCOME taXes .. vvvven e 62,518 4,372 27,570 33,507 74,295

Net income . .....ovviininenannn... $ 111,141 $ 118,653 $ 48,172 $ 62332 $ 135017
Preferred dividends accrued .. ............ — — 71,488 — —

Net income available to common

shareholders . ........ ... ... ... .... $ 111,141 $ 118,653 $ 40,683 % 62,332 $ 135,017

Per share data

Basic earnings . ........... e $ 1.00 $ 1.06 $ 046 % 071  $ 1.55

Diluted earnings . ... ... 1.00 1.05 0.46 0.71 1.54

Cashdividends . ..................... 0.24 0.20 0.20 0.84 0.83
September 30, 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Total @ssets . .o v v $13,440,749 $13,486,379 $12,582,475 $11,830,141 $10,285,417
Loans and mortgage-backed securities .. ... 10,992,053 10,626,842 11,266,295 11,053,223 9,601,947
Investment securities . .................. 246,004 358,061 21,259 49,001 240,391
Cash and cash equivalents .. ............. 816,002 888,622 498,388 82,600 61,378
CuStOmer aCCOUNLS v v v v vv e e 8,665,903 8,852,540 7,842,310 7,169,539 5,996,785
FHLB advances ....................... 1,962,066 1,865,548 2,078,930 1,998,308 1,760,979
Other borrowings . ..................... 800,000 800,000 800,600 1,177,600 1,075,000
Stockholders’ equity . .................. 1,906,533 1,841,147 1,745,485 1,332,674 1,318,127
Number of

Customer aCCOUNtS .« .o v vv v v enenn... 309,532 327,430 305,129 298,926 281,778

LOANS « oottt 39,986 42,540 44,453 47,331 44713

Offices ... 160 160 150 148 135
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

September 30, 2011 2010

(In thousands, except
share data)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents . ......... $ 816,002 $ 888,622
Available-for-sale securities, including encumbered securities of $965,927 and $933,315,

At FAIT VAU « .« et e 3,255,144 2,481,093
Held-to-maturity securities, including encumbered securities of $45,086 and $60,970, at

AMOTTIZEA COSE .« + v v v et et e e e e e e e e e e e 47,036 80,107
Loans receivable, net ... ..o 7,935,877 8,423,703
Covered 10ans, et . ...ttt 382,183 534,474
Interest receivable . . ... 52,332 49,020
Premises and equIPmMent, et . . . ..ottt ettt et e e 166,593 162,721
Real estate held forsale ... ... e 159,829 188,998
Covered real estate held forsale . ... 56,383 44,155
FDIC indemnification @SSET . . . v v vttt et e e e e e e e e 98,871 131,128
FHLB Stock . . oo e 151,755 151,748
Intangible assets, including goodwill of $251,653 .. ... ... ... it 256,271 257,718
Federal and state income taxes, Met . .. ...ttt e e e — 8,093
OLRET ASSEES .+ . v v et et e e e e e e 62,473 84,799

$13,440,749 $13,486,379

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Liabilities
Customer accounts

Transaction depoSit ACCOUNTS .. v v\ vttt ettt et e et e et e e e e e e e e $ 2,662,188 $ 2,554,762

Time deposit ACCOUNTS .+« t v vttt e ettt et e e e e e e e et e e e 6,003,715 6,297,778

8,665,903 8,852,540

FHLB advances ... ...t 1,962,066 1,865,548
Orther BOrTOWINGS .« .« ottt e e e e e 800,000 800,000
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance . ............ o o i 39,548 39,504
Federal and State income taxes, including net deferred liabilities of $17,075 and

21,05 o 1,535 —
Accrued expenses and other liabilities . ......... .. ... 65,164 87,640

11,534,216 11,645,232
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock, $1.00 par value, 300,000,000 shares authorized; 129,853,534 and

129,555,956 shares issued; 108,976,410 and 112,483,632 shares outstanding ......... 129,854 129,556
Paid-in capital .. ..o 1,582,843 1,578,527
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of taxes .. .........ooiiiiii.. 85,789 49,682
Treasury stock, at cost; 20,877,124 and 17,072,324 shares . . ..., (268,665) (208,985)
Retained earnings . . . .. oottt e e 376,712 292,367

1,906,533 1,841,147
$13,440,749  $13,486,379
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended September 30, 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands, except per share data)
INTEREST INCOME
LOANS oottt e $ 522,230 % 561,069 $ 579,244
Mortgage-backed securities .. ...........o i 108,207 91,775 109,486
Investment securities and cash equivalents ........................ 14,198 10,716 3,044
644,635 663,560 691,774
INTEREST EXPENSE
CUSTOMET ACCOUNLES + .+t v v et et ettt et e et et et e e e s 115,835 146,360 191,435
FHLB advances and other borrowings ............................ 111,861 122,741 127,192
227,696 269,101 318,627
Net interest iNCOME . . . ... oot ir i e 416,939 394,459 373,147
Provision for loan losses .. ... 93,104 179,909 193,000
Net interest income after provision for loan losses . ................ 323,835 214,550 180,147
OTHER INCOME
Gain on FDIC-assisted transaction . . .. ....vuvt oot — 85,608 —
Prepayment penalty on FHLB advance ........................... — (8,150) —
Gain on sale of INVEStMENtS . . .o vt vttt et e e 8,147 22,409 —
Other .« o oo 17,786 20,563 19,009
25,933 120,430 19,009
OTHER EXPENSE
Compensation and benefits . .............oo i 72,034 69,879 57,097
Amortization of intangibles ........ . ... ... L 1,447 2,140 3,331
OCCUPANCY -+« ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 14,480 13,933 13,049
FDIC insurance premiums . ... ovvev ettt et e e e e s 20,582 18,626 10,688
Other . oo e 29,496 28,830 25,105
Deferred loan origination COSES « . ... v vt e et et eeeeeenn (1,980) (1,928) (2,210)
136,059 131,480 107,060
Loss on real estate acquired through foreclosure, net ................. (40,050) (80,475) (16,354)
Income before income taxes ............ ... . ... .. 173,659 123,025 75,742
Income taxes
CUITENE o v oottt e e e e e 88,373 (19,890) 56,075
Deferred . . ..o (25,855) 24,262 (28,505)
62,518 4,372 27,570
NET INCOME . .. e 111,141 118,653 48,172
Preferred dividends accrued . ........ ... .. .. .. — — 7,488
Net income available to common shareholders .................... $ 111,141  $ 118,653 $ 40,684
PER SHARE DATA
Basic €arnings . ... ...t $ 1.00 $ 1.06 $ 0.46
Diluted earnings . ...ttt 1.00 1.05 0.46
Cash dividends pershare ......... .. i 0.24 0.20 0.20
Basic weighted average number of shares outstanding .. .............. 111,383,877 112,438,059 88,689,553
Diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding, including
dilutive stock Options .. ... ...ttt 111,460,106 112,745,261 88,711,694

SEE NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 17
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended September 30, 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NEtINCOME &« o\ ettt e e e e e e e e e e $ 111,141 $ 118,653 $ 48,172
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Amortization (accretion) of fees, discounts, premiums and intangible assets,

1< PSPPI 20,663 21,624 4,813
Cash received from FDIC under lossshare . ............ . ... 32,828 92,551 —
DEPIeciation . . oo vttt e et e e 6,667 5,766 5,153
Stock option cOMPENSAtion EXPENSE . . ... v vttt ettt e e e e 1,087 1,213 1,327
Provision for loan losses ... ... 93,104 179,909 193,000
Loss on investment securities and real estate held for sale,net ............... 23,315 58,066 15,101
Gain on FDIC-assisted transaction ... ...........uuiueinineninennnn... — (85,608) —
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable ........................ (3,312) 7,999 1,077
Increase in FDIC loss share receivable .. ... ... ... ... . . .. (7,707) — —
Decrease in income taxes payable ................0o it (11,351) (23,408) (45,831)
FHLB stock dividends . .......... i (7) (6) (15)
Decrease (increase) in otherassets .. ..., 18,844 (51,635) (16,156)
Decrease in accrued expenses and other liabilities ........................ (23,575) (74,243) (22,399)
Net cash provided by operating activities ...............oovuiiiiii.. 261,697 250,881 184,242

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net principal collections (loan originations) . .............c.coooiiiiia... 400,054 281,826 71,509

FHLB stock redeemed . ... ... i — — 394

Available-for-sale securities purchased ............ ... ... . ... . .. (1,585,945) (1,774,343)  (1,175,321)
Principal payments and maturities of available-for-sale securities . . ............. 727,379 1,052,545 513,218

Available-for-sale securitiessold . .......... ... .. .. . 131,361 496,024 18,453

Principal payments and maturities of held-to-maturity securities ............... 33,874 23,128 21,691

Net cash received from acquisition . .............coiiiiineriineennn... — 111,684 —

Proceeds from sales of real estate held forsale . ....... ... ... ... ... .. .. ... 110,400 129,447 98,822

Covered REO purchased . ... ... o i i 29,383 — —

Premises and equipment purchased .......... ... ... .. ... ... ... (10,539) (13,027) (5,273)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities .. .............ooineeoo... (164,033) 307,284 (456,507)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net increase (decrease) in CUSEOMET ACCOUNLS &+ v v vt vt vt et et e e e e (186,637) 190,702 672,771

Net decrease in short-term borrowings . ..............oiiiiieiiieen... — — (377,000)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings . ...........ooiiiiiiiiii 200,000 200,000 100,000

Repayments of long-term borrowings . . .. ......ooouiiiii i (100,000) (539,034) (19,378)
Proceeds from exercise of common stock options and related tax benefit ........ 1,686 1,940 180

Dividends paid on common stock .. ...... .. (25,697) (22,450) (18,847)
Dividends paid on preferred stock .. ......... ... i — — (5,361)
Net proceeds from follow on stock offering . ......... ... . ... ... . ... — — 333,177

Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock and warrants . ..................... — — 200,000

Redemption of preferred stock ..........oooiiii i — — (200,000)
Proceeds from Employee Stock Ownership Plan . ........... ... . ... . .... — — 1,341

Treasury stock purchased, net . ....... ... . i (59,680) — —

Decrease in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance ............ 44 911 1,170

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities . . ..., (170,284) (167,931) 688,053

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .......................... (72,620) 390,234 415,788

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period . ......................... 888,622 498,388 82,600

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ............................... $ 816,002 $ 888,622 $ 498,388
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Year ended September 30, 2011 2010 2009

(In thousands)
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Non-cash investing activities

Non-covered real estate acquired through foreclosure ..................... $112,693 $ 222,057 $254,742

Covered real estate acquired through foreclosure ......................... 54,638 34,536 —
Cash paid during the period for

IIEEIES .+ o vttt ettt e e e e 228,444 269,478 325,157

TNCOME TAXES « v vt et et et e e e e e e e e e 73,798 27,503 77,761

The following summarizes the non-cash activities related to acquisitions

Fair value of assets and intangibles acquired, including goodwill ............... — 1,091,629 —
Fair value of liabilities assumed .. ........ .. .. .. . —  (1,047,981) —
Net fair value of assets (liabilities) . .........c i $ — $ 43,648 $ —

20 SEE NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE A SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
Washington Federal, Inc. (Company or Washington Federal) and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
Intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Description of business. Washington Federal is a unitary thrift holding company. The Company’s
principal operating subsidiary is Washington Federal (Bank). The Bank is principally engaged in the
business of attracting deposits from the general public and investing these funds, together with
borrowings and other funds, in one-to-four family residential real estate loans, multi-family real estate
loans and commercial loans. The Bank conducts its activities through a network of 160 offices located
in Washington, Oregon, Idaho, Utah, Arizona, Nevada, New Mexico, and Texas.

The Company’s fiscal year end is September 30th. All references to 2011, 2010 and 2009 represent
balances as of September 30, 2011, September 30, 2010 and September 30, 2009, or activity for the
fiscal years then ended. References to net income in this document refer to net income available to
common shareholders.

Effective January 8, 2010, the Bank acquired certain assets and liabilities, including most of the loans
and deposits, of Horizon Bank, headquartered in Bellingham, Washington (“Horizon”) from the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), as receiver for Horizon (the “Acquisition”).

The Bank acquired certain assets with a book value of $1.19 billion, including $968 million in loans
and $32 million in foreclosed real estate, and selected liabilities with a book value of $1.03 billion,
including $820 million in deposits. The loans and foreclosed real estate purchased are covered by two
loss share agreements between the FDIC and the Bank (one for single family loans and the other for
all other loans and foreclosed real estate), which affords the Bank significant loss protection. Under
the loss share agreements, the FDIC will cover 80% of covered loan and foreclosed real estate losses
up to $536 million and 95% of losses in excess of that amount. The term for loss sharing on residential
real estate loans is ten years, while the term for loss sharing on non-residential real estate loans is five
years with respect to losses and eight years with respect to loss recoveries. The losses reimbursable by
the FDIC are based on the book value of the relevant loan as determined by the FDIC at the date of
the transaction. New loans made after that date are not covered by the loss share agreements. To
account for the transaction, the balance sheet now has three new line items, as follows:

“Covered loans” represents the loans acquired from Horizon recorded at their estimated fair market
value.

“Covered real estate held for sale” represents the estimated fair market value of the repossessed real
estate acquired in the transaction. The covered loans and covered real estate held for sale are collec-
tively referred to as “covered assets”.

The “FDIC indemnification asset” represents the estimated fair value of the guarantee provided by the
FDIC on the covered assets.

Loans that were classified as non-performing loans by Horizon are no longer classified as
non-performing because, at acquisition, the carrying value of these loans was adjusted to reflect fair
value and are covered under the FDIC loss sharing agreements. Management believes that the new
book value reflects an amount that will ultimately be collected.

Effective October 14, 2011, subsequent to the end of the fiscal year, the Company acquired six branch
locations, four in Albuquerque, New Mexico, and two in Santa Fe, New Mexico, from Charter Bank.

$254,821,000 of deposits were acquired for a premium of $1,061,000.

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, amounts due from
banks, overnight investments and repurchase agreements with an initial maturity of three months or
less.

Investments and mortgage-backed securities. The Company accounts for investments and mortgage-
backed securities in two categories: held-to-maturity and available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity securities — Securities classified as held-to-maturity are accounted for at amortized
cost, but the Company must have both the positive intent and the ability to hold those securities to
maturity. There are very limited circumstances under which securities in the held-to-maturity cat-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

egory can be sold without jeopardizing the cost basis of accounting for the remainder of the securities
in this category.

Awvailable-for-sale securities — Securities not classified as held-to-maturity are considered to be
available-for-sale. Gains and losses realized on the sale of these securities are accounted for based on
the specific identification method. Unrealized gains and losses for available-for-sale securities are
excluded from earnings and reported as a net amount in the accumulated other comprehensive
income component of stockholders’ equity.

Management evaluates debt and equity securities for other than temporary impairment on a quarterly
basis based on the securities’ current credit quality, interest rates, term to maturity and management’s
intent and ability to hold the securities until the net book value is recovered. Any other than tempo-
rary declines in fair value are recognized in the statements of operations.

Premiums and discounts on investments are deferred and recognized over the life of the asset, using
the effective interest method.

Realized gains and losses on securities sold as well as other than temporary impairment charges, are
shown on the Consolidated Statements of Operations under the Other Income (Loss) heading.

Loans receivable — When a borrower fails to make a required payment on a loan, the Company
attempts to cure the deficiency by contacting the borrower. Contact is made after a payment is

30 days past its grace period. In most cases, deficiencies are cured promptly. If the delinquency is not
cured within 90 days, the Company may institute appropriate action to foreclose on the property. If
foreclosed, the property is sold at a public sale and may be purchased by the Company.

The Company will consider modifying the interest rates and terms of a loan if it determines that a
modification is a better alternative to foreclosure.

Loans are placed on nonaccrual status when, in the judgment of management, the probability of col-
lection of interest is deemed to be insufficient to warrant further accrual. When a loan is placed on
nonaccrual status, previously accrued but unpaid interest is deducted from interest income. The
Company does not accrue interest on loans 90 days or more past due. If payment is made on a loan so
that the loan becomes less than 90 days past due, and the Company expects full collection of principal
and interest, the loan is returned to full accrual status. Any interest ultimately collected is credited to
income in the period of recovery. A loan is charged-off when the loss is estimable and it is confirmed
that the borrower will not be able to meet contractual obligations.

The Company maintains an allowance for loan losses to absorb losses inherent in the loan portfolio.
The allowance is based on ongoing, quarterly assessments of the probable and estimable losses
inherent in the loan portfolio. The Company’s methodology for assessing the appropriateness of the
allowance consists of two components, which include the general allowance and specific allowances.

The general loan loss allowance is established by applying a loss percentage factor to the different loan
types. Management believes loan types are the most relevant factor to group loans for the allowance
calculation as the risk characteristics in these groups are similar. The loss percentage factor is made up
of two parts — the historical loss factor (“HLF”) and the qualitative loss factor (“QLF”). The HLF
takes into account historical charge-offs, while the QLF is determined by loan type and allows
management to augment reserve levels to reflect the current environment and portfolio performance
trends including recent charge-off trends. Allowances are provided based on management’s continu-
ing evaluation of the pertinent factors underlying the quality of the loan portfolio, including changes
in the size and composition of the loan portfolio, actual loan loss experience, current economic con-
ditions, collateral values, geographic concentrations, seasoning of the loan portfolio, specific industry
conditions, and the duration of the current business cycle. The recovery of the carrying value of loans
is susceptible to future market conditions beyond the Company’s control, which may result in losses or
recoveries differing from those provided.

Specific allowances are established for loans which are individually evaluated, in cases where manage-
ment has identified significant conditions or circumstances related to a loan that management
believes indicate the probability that a loss has been incurred.

Impaired loans consist of loans receivable that are not expected to have their principal and interest
repaid in accordance with their contractual terms. Collateral dependent impaired loans are measured
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using the fair value of the collateral, less selling costs. Non-collateral dependent loans are measured at
the present value of expected future cash flows.

The Company receives fees for originating loans in addition to various fees and charges related to
existing loans, which may include prepayment charges, late charges and assumption fees. Deferred
loan fees and costs are recognized over the life of the loans using the effective interest method.

Covered loans. Covered loans are the loans acquired from Horizon in 2010 recorded at their esti-
mated fair market value. Loans that were classified as non-performing loans by Horizon are no longer
classified as non-performing because, at acquisition, the carrying value of these loans was adjusted to
reflect fair value and are covered under the FDIC loss sharing agreements. Management believes that
the new book value reflects an amount that will ultimately be collected.

Covered real estate held for sale. Covered real estate held for sale represents the foreclosed properties
that were originally Horizon loans. Covered real estate held for sale is carried at the estimated fair
market value of the repossessed real estate. The covered loans and covered real estate held for sale are
collectively referred to as “covered assets”.

FDIC indemnification asset. FDIC indemnification asset is the receivable recorded from due to guar-
antee provided by the FDIC on the covered assets.

Premises and equipment. Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective
assets. Expenditures are capitalized for betterments and major renewals. Charges for ordinary main-
tenance and repairs are expensed to operations as incurred.

Real estate held for sale. Properties acquired in settlement of loans or acquired for development are
recorded at the lower of cost or fair value less selling costs. Subsequent declines in valuation are
recorded as additional expense in gain (loss) on real estate acquired through foreclosure line item.

Intangible assets. Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of businesses acquired over the fair value
of the net assets acquired. The core deposit intangibles and non-compete agreement intangible are
acquired assets that lack physical substance but can be distinguished from goodwill. Goodwill is eval-
uated for impairment on an annual basis. Other intangible assets are amortized over their estimated
lives and are subject to impairment testing when events or circumstances change. If circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable, an impairment charge could be
recorded. No impairment of intangible assets has ever been identified. The Company amortizes the
two core deposit intangibles on a straight line basis over their estimated lives of 7 and 8 years; the
non-compete agreement intangible, which was fully amortized as of September 30, 2010, was amor-
tized on a straight-line basis over its life of five years.

The balance of the Company’s intangible assets was as follows, which includes the additional goodwill
discussed above:

Servicing Core
Rights Deposit
Goodwill  Intangible Intangible Total

(In thousands)

Balance at September 30,2009 ......... ... ... .. $ 251,653 $ 2,469 $ 2,675 $ 256,797
Additions . ... — — 3,064 3,064
AMOrtization . . oo vttt e — (694) (1,449) (2,143)
Balance at September 30,2010 .......... ... . ....... 251,653 1,775 4,290 257,718
Additions ... .. — — — —
AMOTtiZation . .« oottt e — (529) (918) (1,447)
Balance at September 30, 2011 ..................... $251,653 $1,246 $3,372 $256,271
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The table below presents the estimated core deposit intangible asset amortization expense for the next

five years:
Year End Expense
(in thousands)

200 $918
2003 918
2004 918
200 618
2000 e —

Deferred fees and discounts on loans. Loan discounts and loan fees are deferred and recognized over
the life of the loans using the effective interest method.

Accounting for stock-based compensation. The Company records an expense for the estimated fair
value of equity awards over the vesting period. See Note L for additional information. Stock options
that were not dilutive but were outstanding as of September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were 2,190,123,
1,941,633 and 2,401,764, respectively.

Use of estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates reported in the financial statements
include the allowance for loan losses, intangible assets, deferred taxes and contingent liabilities.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

New accounting pronouncements. In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2011-08, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other
(Topic 350): Testing Goodwill for Impairment. This ASU simplifies how entities, both public and
nonpublic, test goodwill for impairment by permitting an entity to first assess qualitative factors to
determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill
impairment test described in Topic 350. The more-likely-than-not threshold is defined as having a
likelihood of more than 50 percent. Previous guidance under Topic 350 required an entity to test
goodwill for impairment, on at least an annual basis, by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit
with its carrying amount, including goodwill (step one). If the fair value of a reporting unit is less than
its carrying amount, then the second step of the test must be performed to measure the amount of the
impairment loss, if any. Under the amendments in this Update, an entity is not required to calculate
the fair value of a reporting unit unless the entity determines that it is more likely than not that its
fair value is less than its carrying amount. The Company does not anticipate ASU and the guidance
will have a material impact on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220) — Presentation of Com-
prehensive Income. ASU 2011-05 attempts to improve the comparability, consistency, and transparency
of financial reporting and to increase the prominence of items reported in other comprehensive income.
The effective date of ASU 2011-05 will be the first interim or fiscal period beginning after December 15,
2011 and should be applied retrospectively to transactions or modifications of existing transactions that
occur on or after the effective date. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact
this ASU will have on its financial condition and results of operations.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820) — Amendments to
Achieve Common Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs. ASU
2011-04 developed common requirements between U.S. GAAP and IFRSs for measuring fair value
and for disclosing information about fair value measurements. The effective date of ASU 2011-04 will
be during interim or annual period beginning after December 15, 2011 and should be applied pro-
spectively to transactions or modifications of existing transactions that occur on or after the effective
date. Early adoption is not permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact this ASU will have on
its financial condition and results of operations.
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In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-03, Transfers and Servicing (Topic 860) — Reconsidera-
tion of Effective Control for Repurchase Agreements. This ASU removes from the assessment of effective
control (1) the criterion requiring the transferor to have the ability to repurchase or redeem the
financial assets on substantially the agreed terms, even in the event of default by the transferee, and
(2) the collateral maintenance implementation guidance related to that criterion. Other criteria
applicable to the assessment of effective control are not changed by the amendments in this ASU.
The guidance in this ASU is effective for the first interim or annual period beginning on or after
December 15, 2011. The guidance should be applied prospectively to transactions or modifications of
existing transactions that occur on or after the effective date. Early adoption is not permitted. The
Company intends to comply with this new guidance.

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-02, Receivables (Topic 310) — A Creditor’s Determination of
Whether a Restructuring Is a Troubled Debt Restructuring. The amendments in this ASU clarify the
guidance on a creditor’s evaluation of whether it has granted a concession and whether a debtor is
experiencing financial difficulties. This guidance will be effective for the first interim or annual period
beginning on or after June 15, 2011, and should be applied retrospectively to the beginning of the
annual period of adoption (i.e., October 1, 2010, for the Company). As a result of this guidance,
receivables previously measured under loss contingency guidance that are newly considered impaired
should be disclosed, along with the related allowance for credit losses, as of the end of the period of
adoption. The adoption of this guidance resulted in $7.6 million of loan modifications being classified
as troubled debt restructurings that previously would not have been so classified. The incremental
impact on the allowance for loan losses was not significant.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-28, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350) —
When to Perform Step 2 of the Goodwill Impairment Test for Reporting Units with Zero or Negative Carrying
Amounts. The amendments in this ASU affect all entities that have recognized goodwill and have one
or more reporting units whose carrying amount for purposes of performing Step 1 of the goodwill
impairment test is zero or negative. As the Company has only one reporting unit with a carrying
amount greater than zero, this ASU has no impact on the financial statements.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-29, Business Combinations (Topic 805) — Disclosure of
Supplementary Pro Forma Information for Business Combinations. The amendments in this ASU specify
that if a public entity presents comparative financial statements, the entity should disclose revenue
and earnings of the combined entity as though the business combination(s) that occurred during the
current year had occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period only.
This ASU also expands the supplemental pro forma disclosures under Topic 805 to include a descrip-
tion of the nature and amount of material, nonrecurring pro forma adjustments directly attributable to
the business combination included in the reported pro forma revenue and earnings. This guidance will
be effective for any business combinations entered into by the Company for which the acquisition

date is after October 1, 2011.

Business segments. As the Company manages its business and operations on a consolidated basis,
management has determined that there is one reportable business segment.

Reclassifications. Certain reclassifications have been made to the financial statements for years prior
to September 30, 2011 to conform to current year classifications.

25



—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE B INVESTMENT SECURITIES
September 30, 2011

Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value Yield
(In thousands)

Available-for-sale securities
U.S. government and agency securities due

Within 1year ...................... $ 500 $ 34 $ — % 534 4.00%

ltoSyears «..vvvvnein — — — — —

StolOyears ....ovvviiiii. 9,300 4,547 — 13,847 10.38

Over10years ........coooiiiinninn. 175,515 631 — 176,146 2.57
Corporate bonds due

S5tol0years ....ovvviiiii. 30,000 284 (325) 29,959 4.00
Municipal bonds due

Over 10years ........ooviinnao... 20,641 3,107 —_ 23,568 6.45
Mortgage-backed securities

Agency pass-through certificates ....... 2,883,734 127,356 — 3,011,090 4.72

3,119,510 135,959 (325) 3,255,144 4.62%

Held-to-maturity securities

Tax-exempt municipal bonds due
ltoSyears ...ovvviiinninina.. 405 5 — 410 6.52%
S5tol0years .....ooiiiiiiiiiiii... 1,545 68 — 1,613 5.60
Over10years .........ccovvienno... — — — — —

U.S. government and agency securities due

ltoSyears «..vvvneinii — — — — —
Mortgage-backed securities
Agency pass-through certificates ....... 45,086 3,507 — 48,593 5.31
47,036 3,580 — 50,616 5.33
$3,166,546 $139,539 $ (325) $3,305,760 4.63%
September 30, 2010

Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value Yield
(In thousands)

Available-for-sale securities
U.S. government and agency securities due

Within 1year ...................... $ 500 $ 26 $ — $ 526 4.00%

ltoSyears «..oovvviininneiia.. 25,000 180 — 25,180 3.25

S5tol0years ......oiiiiiiii. 158,915 5,344 (105) 164,154 3.59

Over10years «........covviinnao... 150,000 1,161 (15) 151,146 3.50
Corporate bonds due

S5tol0years .....oviiiiiiiiiiii... 10,000 — — 10,000 6.00
Mortgage-backed securities

Agency pass-through certificates ....... 2,058,130 72,853 (896) 2,130,087 5.26

2,402,545 79,564 (1,016) 2,481,093 5.02%

Held-to-maturity securities
Tax-exempt municipal bonds due

ltoSyears «..vvvvneiin 1,105 65 — 1,170 6.11%

Stol0years .....ovviiiiiii.. 1,940 115 — 2,055 5.67

Over10years ........c.ooovininninn. 4,010 34 — 4,044 5.60
U.S. government and agency securities due

ltoSyears «..vviiiiiii i — - - - _
Mortgage-backed securities 73,052 4,579 — 77,631 5.59

Agency pass-through certificates ....... 80,107 4,793 — 84,900 5.60

$ 2,482,652 $ 84357 $(1,016) $ 2,565,993 5.04%
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NOTEC

$131,361,000 of available-for-sale securities were sold in 2011, resulting in a gain of $8,147,000.
$496,024,000 of available-for-sale securities were sold in 2010, resulting in a net gain of $22,409,000.
$18,453,000 of available-for-sale securities were sold in 2009, resulting in a net gain of $1,063,000.

Substantially all mortgage-backed securities have contractual due dates that exceed ten years.

The following table shows the unrealized gross losses and fair value of securities at September 30,
2011, by length of time that individual securities in each category have been in a continuous loss
position. The Company had no securities in a continuous loss position for 12 or more months at
September 30, 2011, which consisted of mortgage-backed securities. Management believes that the
declines in fair value of these investments are not an other than temporary impairment.

As of September 30, 2011
Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
Gross Losses  Value ~ Gross Losses  Value  Gross Losses  Value
(In thousands)
U.S. agency securities .. ...... $(325) $9,675 $— $— $(325) $9,675
Agency pass-through
certificates ............... — — — — — _
$(325) $9,675 $— $— $(325) $9,675

LOANS RECEIVABLE (EXCLUDING COVERED LOANS)

September 30,

2011 2010

Single-family residential ............ ... ... ... ..
Construction — speculative .......................
Construction — CUSTOM. .« v v v vt eeee s
Land — acquisition & development . ................
Land — consumer lotloans .. ......................
Multi-family .. ..o
Commercial real estate ............ ... ... ...
Commercial & industrial . ........................
HELOC .. e

CONSUMET .« .+ ot et et e e et e e e

Less:
Allowance for loan losses . ...............cu...
Loans in process « .. .ovvvttn i
Deferred net origination fees .. ....................

(In thousands)

% $ %
(In thousands)

$6,218,878 74.9% 6,551,837 74.8%

140,459 1.7 169,712 1.9
279,851 3.4 256,384 2.9
200,692 2.4 307,230 35
163,146 2.0 186,840 2.1
700,673 8.4 697,351 7.9
303,442 3.7 315,915 3.6
109,332 1.3 83,070 0.9
115,092 1.4 116,143 1.3
67,509 0.8 92,624 1.1
8,299,074 100.0% 8,777,106 100.0%
157,160 163,094
170,229 154,171
35,808 36,138
363,197 353,403
$7,935,877 $8,423,703

The Company originates fixed and adjustable interest rate loans, which at September 30, 2011 con-

sisted of the following:
Fixed-Rate

Adjustable-Rate

Term To Maturity Book Value Term To Rate Adjustment Book Value
(In thousands) (In thousands)
Within 1 year ............. $ 336,641 Less than 1 year ........... $289,814
lto3vyears . oovvvvvnenn... 199,620 lto3years ..o 197,107
3to5years ..ottt 168,798 3to5vyears .« 43,515
5tol0years .............. 626,142 5tol0vyears .............. 158,636
10to20vyears . ............ 616,212 10to20vyears ............. 26,972
Over20years ............. 5,493,260 Over20years ............. 142,357
$7,440,673 $858,401
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

At September 30, 2011 and 2010, approximately $67,542,000 and $79,871,000 of fixed-rate loan origination commitments
were outstanding, respectively. Loans serviced for others at September 30, 2011 and 2010 were approximately

$102,775,000 and $130,874,000, respectively.
Gross loans by geographic concentration were as follows:

Single -
September 30, Family Multi- Land - Land - Construction - Construction - Commercial Commercial
2011 Residential ~ family A & D Lot Loans  Custom Speculative  Real Estate and Industrial Consumer HELOC Total

(In thousands)
Washington . . . $2,720,997 $220,819 $114,852 $ 80,332 $168,463 $ 89,983 $238,446  $101,278 $65,140 $ 74,049 $3,874,359

Oregon ...... 1,003,289 299,839 17,013 33,152 45,784 18,441 13,744 — — 7,484 1,438,746
Other........ 419,202 7,343 — — — — — 745 — — 427,290
Idaho ........ 465,420 31,417 8,457 16,251 9,421 10,886 882 — — 5,423 548,157
Arizona ...... 633,860 59,993 19,463 14,090 18,687 4,720 — 219 — 6,559 757,591
Utah ........ 502,585 59,445 14,656 11,576 26,803 4,305 496 118 — 6,001 625,985
New Mexico .. 182,375 14,284 22,909 5,178 3,135 9,345 49,399 6,972 2,369 15,438 311,404
Texas ........ 151,178 2,835 3,342 998 6,373 2,000 475 — — — 167,201
Nevada ...... 139,972 4,698 — 1,569 1,185 779 — — — 138 148,341

$6,218,878 $700,673 $200,692 $163,146 $279,851 $140,459  $303,442 $109,332 $67,509 $115,092 $8,299,074

PERCENTAGE BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

Single -
September 30, Far%ily Multi- Land- Land - Construction - Construction - Commercial Commercial
2011 Residential ~ family A & D Lot Loans  Custom Speculative  Real Estate and Industrial Consumer HELOC Total
As % of total gross loans

Washington . . . 32.6% 2.7% 1.4% 1.0% 2.0% 1.1% 2.9% 1.2% 0.8% 0.9% 46.6%
Oregon ...... 12.1 3.6 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.2 0.2 — — 0.1 17.4
Other........ 5.1 0.1 — — — — — — — — 5.2
Idaho ........ 5.6 0.4 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1 — — — 0.1 6.6
Arizona ...... 7.6 0.7 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 — — — 0.1 9.1
Utah ........ 6.1 0.7 0.2 0.1 0.3 0.1 — — — 0.1 7.6
New Mexico .. 2.2 0.2 0.3 0.1 — 0.1 0.6 0.1 — 0.2 3.8
Texas ........ 1.8 — — — 0.1 — — — — — 1.9
Nevada ...... 1.7 0.1 — — — — — — — — 1.8

74.8% 8.5% 2.4% 2.0% 3.3% 1.7% 3.7% 1.3% 0.8% 1.5% 100.0%

PERCENTAGE BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA AS A % OF EACH LOAN TYPE

Single -
September 30, Farrglily Multi-  Land-  Land- Construction - Construction - Commercial Commercial
2011 Residential ~ family A & D LotLoans  Custom Speculative  Real Estate and Industrial Consumer HELOC
As % of total gross loans

Washington . . . 43.8% 31.5% 57.2% 49.2% 60.1% 63.9% 78.5% 92.6% 96.5% 64.4%
Oregon ...... 16.1 42.8 8.5 20.3 16.4 13.1 4.5 — — 6.5
Other ........ 6.7 1.0 — — — — — 0.7 — —
Idaho ........ 7.5 4.5 4.2 10.0 3.4 7.8 0.3 — — 4.7
Arizona ...... 10.2 8.6 9.7 8.6 6.7 3.4 — 0.2 — 5.7
Utah ........ 8.1 8.5 7.3 7.1 9.6 3.1 0.2 0.1 — 5.2
New Mexico .. 2.9 2.0 11.4 3.2 1.1 6.7 16.3 6.4 3.5 13.4
Texas ........ 2.4 0.4 1.7 0.6 2.3 1.4 0.2 — — —
Nevada ...... 2.3 0.7 — 1.0 0.4 0.6 — — — 0.1

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%  100.0% 100.0%
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The following table provides additional information on impaired loans, loan commitments and loans
serviced for others:

September 30, 2011  September 30, 2010
(In thousands)

Recorded investment in impaired loans ..................... $ 476,822 $ 489,826
Impaired loans with allocated reserves ...................... 123,862 202,120
Reserves on impaired loans . ....... ... ... . ... . o .. 41,912 65,002
Average balance of impaired loans ......................... 486,665 528,371
Interest income from impaired loans . ....................... 28,081 31,279
Qutstanding fixed-rate origination commitments ............. 67,542 79,871
Loans serviced forothers .......... ... 102,775 130,874

The following table sets forth information regarding non-accrual loans held by the Company as of the
dates indicated:

September 30, 2011 September 30, 2010
(In thousands)

Non-accrual loans:

Single-family residential .......... .. ... .. i i $ 126,624 60.3% $ 123,624 50.3%
Construction — speculative .. ...t 15,383 7.3 39915 163
CONStruCtion — CUSTOM &+« v v v vt e te ettt e e e e 635 0.3 — —
Land — acquisition & development ......................... 37,339 17.7 64,883  26.4
Land — consumer lot loans . ........... ... ... ... . ... 8,843 4.2 — —
Multi-family .. ... 7,664 3.6 4,931 2.0
Commercial real estate . ... 11,380 5.4 10,831 4.4
Commercial & industrial . ........ ... .. ... . . 1,679 0.8 371 0.2
HELOC . .o e 481 0.2 — —
CONSUMET .+« v et et et e e e e e e e e e 437 0.2 977 0.4
Total non-accrualloans . .............coviiiinieinn. .. $ 210,465 100% $ 245,532  100%

The following table provides an analysis of the age of loans in past due status as of September 30, 2011:

Loans Days Delinquent Based on $ Amount of Loans %
Type of Loans net of LIP Current 30 60 90 Total  Delinquent
(In thousands)
Single-Family

Residential ......... $ 6,217,670 $ 6,015,464 $ 54,140 $ 21,985 $ 126,082 $ 202,207 3.25%
Construction —

Speculative ........ 115,409 106,843 330 — 8,236 8,566 7.42
Construction —

Custom............ 147,764 147,129 — — 635 635 0.43
Land — Acquisition &

Development ....... 193,613 159,357 679 — 33,577 34,256 17.69
Land — Consumer Lot

Loans ............. 163,146 151,849 1,163 1,291 8,843 11,297 6.92
Multi-Family ......... 699,340 690,765 — 1,202 7,373 8,575 1.23
Commercial Real

Estate ............. 300,307 292,015 1,016 — 7,276 8,292 2.76
Commercial &

Industrial .......... 108,995 106,708 55 553 1,679 2,287 2.10
HELOC ............. 115,092 114,059 452 100 481 1,033 0.90
Consumer .. .......... 67,509 65,434 1,191 446 437 2,074 3.07

$8,128,845 $7,849,623 $59,026 $25,577 $194,619 $279,222 3.43%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Restructured loans are accruing and performing loans where the borrower has proactively approached
the Company about modifications due to temporary financial difficulties. Each request is individually
evaluated for merit and likelihood of success. As of September 30, 2011 single-family residential loans
comprised 82% of restructured loans. The concession for these loans is typically a payment reduction
through a rate reduction of from 100 to 200 bps for a specific term, usually six to twelve months.
Interest-only payments may also be approved during the modification period. Principal forgiveness is
not an available option for restructured loans.

The Bank reserves for restructured loans within its allowance for loan loss methodology by taking into
account the following performance indicators: 1) time since modification, 2) current payment status
and 3) geographic area.

The following tables provides information related to loans that were restructured during the fiscal

2011:
Pre-Modification Post-Modification
Number of  Outstanding Recorded ~ Outstanding Recorded
Contracts Investment Investment

(In thousands)
Troubled Debt Restructurings:

Single-family residential . ................ 681 $177,216 $177,216
Construction — speculative .............. 12 2,499 2,499
Construction — Custom .« . .. .oovvevevnnn .. — — —
Land — acquisition & development ........ 3 3,909 3,909
Land — consumer lot loans ............... 62 8,745 8,745
Multi-family .............. . ... .. 9 10,360 10,360

Commercial real estate . . ................ — _ _
Commercial & industrial ................ — _ _
HELOC ... e 1 99 99

CONSUMET v vt e ettt e — — _

768 $202,828 $202,828

Number of Recorded
Contracts Investment

(In thousands)

Troubled Debt Restructurings That Subsequently Defaulted:
Single-family residential ............ . ... o i 103 $27,878
Construction — speculative .. ...... ...t — —
CoOnStruCtion — CUSTOML .+« . vt v ettt e e e e e e ee e
Land — acquisition & development ............. .. ... o L
Land — consumer lot loans . .. ...
Multi-family . ...
Commercial real estate . ........ ... .o —
Commercial & industrial .. ...... .. .o — —
HELOC o - —

CONSUMICT .« .« v vt e et e e e e e — —

109 $29,640

719

=1 o

NOTE D ALLOWANCE FOR LOSSES ON LOANS

The Company has an asset quality review function that analyzes its loan portfolios and reports the
results of the review to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. The single-family residential,
HELOC and consumer portfolios are evaluated based on their performance as a pool of loans, since no
single loan is individually significant or judged by its risk rating, size or potential risk of loss. The
construction, land, multi-family, commercial real estate and commercial and industrial loans are risk
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rated on a loan by loan basis to determine the relative risk inherent in specific borrowers or loans.
Based on that risk rating, the loans are assigned a grade and classified as follows:

e Pass — the credit does not meet one of the definitions defined below.

e Special mention — A special mention credit is considered to be currently protected from loss but is poten-
tially weak. No loss of principal or interest is foreseen; however, proper supervision and Management
attention is required to deter further deterioration in the credit. Assets in this category constitute some
undue and unwarranted credit risk but not to the point of justifying a risk rating of substandard. The
credit risk may be relatively minor yet constitutes an unwarranted risk in light of the circumstances sur-
rounding a specific asset.

e Substandard — A substandard credit is an unacceptable credit. Additionally, repayment in the normal
course is in jeopardy due to the existence of one or more well defined weaknesses. In these situations,
loss of principal is likely if the weakness is not corrected. A substandard asset is inadequately protected
by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged, if any.
Assets so classified will have a well defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the
debt. Loss potential, while existing in the aggregate amount of substandard assets, does not have to exist
in individual assets risk rated substandard.

e Doubtful — A credit classified doubtful has all the weaknesses inherent in one classified substandard with
the added characteristic that the weakness makes collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of cur-
rently existing facts, conditions and values, highly questionable and improbable. The probability of loss
is high, but because of certain important and reasonably specific pending factors that may work to the
advantage and strengthening of the asset, its classification as an estimated loss is deferred until its more
exact status may be determined. Pending factors include proposed merger, acquisition, or liquidation
procedures, capital injection, perfecting liens on additional collateral, and refinancing plans.

e Loss — Credits classified loss are considered uncollectible and of such little value that their continuance
as a bankable asset is not warranted. This classification does not mean that the asset has absolutely no
recovery or salvage value, but rather it is not practical or desirable to defer writing off this asset even
though partial recovery may be affected in the future. Losses should be taken in the period in which they
are identified as uncollectible. Partial charge-off versus full charge-off may be taken if the collateral offers
some identifiable protection.

The following table summarizes the activity in the allowance for loan losses for the twelve months

ended September 30, 2011 and 2010:

Beginning Provision & Ending
September 30, 2011 Allowance Charge-offs Recoveries  Transfers Allowance

(In thousands)

Single-family residential ............. $ 47,160 $ (38,465) $ 3,072 $ 71,540 $ 83,307
Construction — speculative ........... 26,346 (13,197) 2,143 (1,464) 13,828
Construction — custom . .. ........... 770 (237) — 90 623
Land — acquisition & development . . . .. 61,637 (39,797) 2,271 8,608 32,719
Land — consumer lot loans ........... 4,793 (4,196) — 4,923 5,520
Multi-family . ... 5,050 (1,950) 71 4,452 7,623
Commercial real estate .............. 3,165 (1,593) 328 2,431 4,331
Commercial & industrial ............ 6,193 (4,733) 1,925 1,714 5,099
HELOC ... 586 (939) 185 1,307 1,139
CONSUMET + v v v e e e ee e e 7,394 (4,602) 1,429 (1,250) 2,971

$163,094 $(109,709) $ 11,424 $ 92,351  $157,160
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Provision

Beginning & Ending

September 30, 2010 Allowance Charge-offs Recoveries Transfers  Allowance
(In thousands)

Single-family residential ................. $ 18,547 $ (33,812) % 104  $62,321 $ 47,160
Construction — speculative . .............. 21,841 (28,930) 523 32,912 26,346
Construction — Custom . . .. ......ovnvn... 81 (359) 188 860 770
Land — acquisition & development ........ 104,569 (105,576) 844 61,800 61,637
Land — consumer lot loans ............... 1,298 (359) 11 3,843 4,793
Multi-family ........... ... ... ... .... 1,878 (2,010) — 5,182 5,050
Commercial real estate .. ................ 1,344 (651) 3 2,469 3,165
Commercial & industrial ................ 7,327 (8,902) 923 6,845 6,193
HELOC . ... o 377 (118) — 327 586
CONSUMET .\ vt ettt oo et 9,574 (6,670) 1,140 3,350 71,394

$166,836  $(187,387) $ 3,736 379,909 $163,094

The Company recorded a $93,104,000 provision for loan losses during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2011, while a $179,909,000 provision was recorded for the year ended September 30,
2010. The provision for loan losses for 2011 was $93,104,000, which was made up of the $92,351,000
shown above plus $753,000 in provision expense related to covered loans. Non-performing assets
(“NPAs”) amounted to $370,294,000, or 2.76%, of total assets at September 30, 2011, compared to
$434,530,000, or 3.22%, of total assets one year ago. Covered loans are not classified as
non-performing loans because, at acquisition, the carrying value of these loans was adjusted to reflect
fair value and are covered under FDIC loss sharing agreements. The allowance for credit losses related
to the acquired loans results from decreased expectations of future cash flows due to increased credit
losses for certain acquired loan pools. Non-accrual loans decreased from 245,532,000 at September 30,
2010, to $210,465,000 at September 30, 2011, a 14.3% decrease. The Company had net charge-offs of
$98,285,000 for the twelve months ended September 30, 2011, compared with $183,651,000 of net
charge-offs for the same period one year ago. A loan is charged-off when the loss is estimable and it is
confirmed that the borrower will not be able to meet its contractual obligations. $115,248,000 of the
allowance was calculated under the formulas contained in our general allowance methodology and the
remaining $41,912,000 was made up of specific reserves on loans that were deemed to be impaired at
September 30, 2011. For the period ending September 30, 2010, $98,092,000 of the allowance was
calculated under the formulas contained in our general allowance methodology and the remaining
$65,002,000 was made up of specific reserves on loans that were deemed to be impaired. The primary
reasons for the shift in total allowance allocation from specific reserves to general reserves is due to
the Company having already addressed many of the problem loans focused in the speculative con-
struction and land A&D portfolios, combined with an increase in delinquencies and elevated charge-
offs in the single-family residential portfolio.
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The following tables show a summary of loans collectively and individually evaluated for impairment
and the related allocation of general and specific reserves as of September 30, 2011 and 2010:

Loans Collectively Evaluated for Impairment Loans Individually Evaluated for Impairment

General  Gross Loans Subject Specific ~ Gross Loans Subject
September 30, Reserve to Reserve to
2011 Allocation  General Reserve (1) Ratio Allocation  Specific Reserve (1) Ratio
(In thousands) (In thousands)

Single-family

residential .. ... $ 77,441 $ 6,186,322 1.3% $ 5,866 $ 32,556  18.0%
Construction —

speculative . ... 6,969 89,986 7.7 6,859 50,473 13.6
Construction —

custom ....... 623 279,851 0.2 — — —
Land -
acquisition &
development . . . .. 10,489 61,277 17.1 22,230 139,415 15.9
Land — consumer

lotloans ...... 4,385 160,906 2.7 1,135 2,240 50.7
Multi-family .. ... 3,443 679,823 0.5 4,180 20,850 20.0
Commercial real

estate . ........ 2,730 268,906 1.0 1,601 34,536 4.6
Commercial &

industrial . ... .. 5,058 106,406 4.8 41 2,926 1.4
HELOC ........ 1,139 115,092 1.0 — — —
Consumer .. ..... 2,971 67,509 4.4 — — —

$ 115,248 $ 8,016,078 1.4% $ 41,912 $ 282,996 14.8%

(1) Excludes covered loans
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Loans Collectively Evaluated for Impairment Loans Individually Evaluated for Impairment

Gross Loans Gross Loans
General Subject to Subject to
Reserve General Reserve Specific Reserve Specific
September 30, 2010 Allocation (1) Ratio Allocation Reserve (1)  Ratio
(In thousands) (In thousands)

Single-family

residential $ 41,057 $ 6,525,729 0.6% $ 6,103 $ 26,107 23.4%
Construction —

speculative 15,792 113,059 14.0 10,554 56,653 18.6
Construction — custom 770 254,454 0.3 — 1,930 —
Land — acquisition &
development 19,296 59,819 32.3 42,341 247,411 17.1
Land — consumer lot

loans 3,020 183,253 1.7 1,773 3,587 494
Multi-family 2,490 688,778 04 2,560 8,573 29.9
Commercial real estate 2,313 315,063 0.7 852 852 100.0
Commercial &

industrial 5,374 82,251 6.5 819 819 100.0
HELOC 586 116,143 0.5 — — —
Consumer 7,394 92,625 8.0 — — —

$ 98,092 $ 8,431,174 1.2% $ 65,002 $ 345932 18.8%

(1) Excludes covered loans

The following tables provide information on loans based on credit quality indicators (defined in Note
A) as of September 30, 2011 and 2010:

Credit Risk Profile by Internally Assigned Grade:

Internally Assigned Grade Total
September 30, 2011 Pass Special mention Substandard Doubtful Loss  Gross Loans
(In thousands)

Single-family residential ... $6,047,279 $ — $171,599 $ — $ — $6,218,878
Construction —

speculative . ........... 56,485 21,035 62,939 — — 140,459
Construction — custom . . . . 279,851 — — — — 279,851
Land — acquisition &

development .......... 44,888 44,840 110,964 — — 200,692
Land — consumer lot

loans . ................ 162,670 — 476 — — 163,146
Multi-family .. ........... 663,582 4,629 32,462 — — 700,673
Commercial real estate .. .. 264,083 4,125 35,234 — — 303,442
Commercial & industrial . . 104,171 1,128 1,407 2,245 381 109,332
HELOC ................ 115,092 — — — — 115,092
Consumer .............. 66,512 528 469 — — 67,509

$7,804,613 $76,285 $415,550 $2,245 $381 $8,299,074

Total grade as a % of total

gross loans . ........... 94.1% 0.9% 5.0% —% —%
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Internally Assigned Grade Total
September 30, 2010 Pass Special mention ~ Substandard  Doubtful ~ Loss  Gross Loans
(In thousands)
Single-family residential ..  $6,395,018 $ 1,041 $155,778 $— $ —  $6,551,837
Construction —
speculative . .......... 68,984 7,689 93,039 — — 169,712
Construction — custom . . . . 256,384 - _— — — 256,384
Land — acquisition &
development .......... 110,088 9,868 187,274 — — 307,230
Land — consumer lot
loans ................ 186,840 — — — — 186,840
Multi-family ............ 661,820 2,046 33,485 — — 697,351
Commercial real estate . . . . 273,001 3,768 39,048 — 98 315,915
Commercial &
industrial . ............ 62,699 10,436 9,758 — 177 83,070
HELOC ............... 116,143 — — — — 116,143
Consumer .............. 90,497 1,150 977 — — 92,624
$8,221,474 $35,998 $519,359 $— $275  $8,777,106
Total grade as a % of total
gross loans ... ......... 93.7% 0.4% 5.9% —% —%
Credit Risk Profile Based on Payment Activity:
Performing Loans Non-Performing Loans
% of Total % of Total
September 30, 2011 Amount Gross Loans Amount Gross Loans
(In thousands) (In thousands)
Single-family residential ................ $6,092,254 98.0% $126,624 2.0%
Construction — speculative .............. 125,076 89.0 15,383 11.0
Construction — CUStOM « « v v v v v e v eeee e 279,216 99.8 635 0.2
Land — acquisition & development ........ 163,353 81.4 37,339 18.6
Land — consumer lot loans .. ............. 154,303 94.6 8,843 5.4
Multi-family ............ . ... oo 693,009 98.9 7,664 1.1
Commercial real estate . ................ 292,062 96.2 11,380 3.8
Commercial & industrial ................ 107,653 98.5 1,679 1.5
HELOC ... ... . 114,611 99.6 481 0.4
CONSUMET © .+ vt 67,072 99.4 437 0.6
$8,088,609 97.5% $210,465 2.5%
Performing Loans Non-Performing Loans
% of Total % of Total
September 30, 2010 Amount Gross Loans Amount Gross Loans
(In thousands) (In thousands)
Single-family residential . .............. ... $6,428,214 98.1% $123,623 1.9%
Construction — speculative . . .............. 129,797 76.5 39,915 23.5
Construction — Custom . . ... ..oovvuen.n... 256,384 100.0 — —
Land — acquisition & development ......... 242,347 78.9 64,883 21.1
Land — consumer lot loans . ............... 186,840 100.0 — —
Multi-family ............... .. ... ... 692,420 99.3 4,931 0.7
Commercial real estate . .................. 305,084 96.6 10,831 34
Commercial & industrial ................. 82,699 99.6 371 0.4
HELOC o1 iv i v v ie i e s enee vninn e ies 116,143 100.0 — —
CONSUMET .+ v et et et e i 91,647 98.9 9717 1.1
$8,531,575 97.2% $245,531 2.8%
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The following tables provide information on impaired loans based on loan types as of September 30,

2011 and 2010:

Unpaid Average
Recorded Principal Related Recorded
September 30, 2011 Investment Balance Allowance Investment

(In thousands)
With no related allowance recorded:

Single-family residential ................. ... .... $ 5,597 $ 9,575 $ — $ 5,935
Construction — speculative ....................... 8,286 11,026 — 7,374
CONnStruction — CUSTOM. .« .+« vttt eeee s — — — —
Land — acquisition & development . ................ 22,436 50,970 — 28,168
Land — consumer lot loans ....................... — — — —
Multi-family .. ... 3,233 4,508 — 4,058
Commercial real estate .. ........................ 3,462 3,963 —_ 2,141
Commercial & industr